In accordance with Sections 859A and 859J of the Companies Act 2006.

# **MR01**

## Particulars of a charge



	Go online to file this information www.gov.uk/companieshouse  A fee is be payable with this form Please see 'How to pay' on the last page.						
<b>-</b>	What this form is for You may use this form to register a charge created or evidenced by an instrument.  What this form You may not use the register a charge instrument. Use instrument.  *A711' A12  *A711'	n, please at: iieshouse YZHC*					
	This form must be delivered to the Registrar for region COMPANIE 21 days beginning with the day after the date of creation of the charge. If delivered outside of the 21 days it will be rejected unless it is accompanied by a court order extending the time for delivery.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
	You <b>must</b> enclose a certified copy of the instrument with this form. This will be scanned and placed on the public record. <b>Do not send the original</b> .						
1	Company details	For official use					
Company number	0 4 4 2 6 8 5 6	→ Filling in this form					
Company name in full	POSITIVE STEPS CHILDRENS DAY NURSERY LIMITED	Please complete in typescript or in bold black capitals.					
		All fields are mandatory unless specified or indicated by *					
2	Charge creation date						
Charge creation date	d 2 d 5 m 1 m 0 y 2 y 0 y 1 y 8						
3	Names of persons, security agents or trustees entitled to the charge						
	Please show the names of each of the persons, security agents or trustees entitled to the charge.						
Name	SUMITOMO MITSUI BANKING CORPORATION EUROPE LIMITED						
	(as Security Agent)						
Name							
Name							
Name							
	If there are more than four names, please supply any four of these names then tick the statement below.  I confirm that there are more than four persons, security agents or trustees entitled to the charge.						

	MR01 Particulars of a charge	
4	Brief description	
	Please give a short description of any land, ship, aircraft or intellectual property registered or required to be registered in the UK subject to a charge (which is not a floating charge) or fixed security included in the instrument.	Please submit only a short description If there are a number of plots of land, aircraft and/or ships, you should simply describe some
Brief description	Freehold properties including: Chichester - The Cherries, Summersdale Road, Chichester, P019 6PL w/ Title no.WSX236109; long leasehold property: Stokenchurch - Positive Steps Day Nursery, Lower Church Street, Stokenchurch, HP14 3TG w/ Title no. BM378134. Intellectual property "POSITIVE STEPS" w/ Trademark no. UK00003134711. Please refer to Schedule 3 (Part 1 and Part 2) and Schedule 5 of the security instrument for additional details.	of them in the text field and add a statement along the lines of, "for more details please refer to the instrument".  Please limit the description to the available space.
5	Other charge or fixed security	
	Does the instrument include a charge (which is not a floating charge) or fixed security over any tangible or intangible or (in Scotland) corporeal or incorporeal property not described above? Please tick the appropriate box.  Yes  No	
6	Floating charge	
	Is the instrument expressed to contain a floating charge? Please tick the appropriate box.  Yes Continue  No Go to Section 7  Is the floating charge expressed to cover all the property and undertaking of the company?  Yes	
7	Negative Pledge	1
	Do any of the terms of the charge prohibit or restrict the company from creating further security that will rank equally with or ahead of the charge?  Please tick the appropriate box.  Yes  No	
Q	Trustee statement •	<u> </u>
8	You may tick the box if the company named in Section 1 is acting as trustee of the property or undertaking which is the subject of the charge.	◆ This statement may be filed after the registration of the charge (use form MR06).
9	Signature	1
	Please sign the form here.	
Signature	* LATHAM & WATKINS *	
	This form must be signed by a person with an interest in the charge.	

## **MR01**

Particulars of a charge

## Presenter information

You do not have to give any contact information, but if you do, it will help Companies House if there is a query on the form. The contact information you give will be visible to searchers of the public record.

l									
Contact name	Roy	Mw	angi	į					
Company nam	e LAT	HAN	1&\	<b>VAT</b>	KINS	S LLI	P		
Address	99 B	ISH	OPS	SGA <sup>-</sup>	ГЕ				
Post town	LON	DOI	4						
County/Regio	n								
Postcode		E	С	2	М		3	Х	F
Country	ENG	LAN	1D						
DX									
Telephone	0207	710	30	86					

## ✓ Certificate

We will send your certificate to the presenter's address if given above or to the company's Registered Office if you have left the presenter's information blank.

## ✓ Checklist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or with information missing.

# Please make sure you have remembered the following:

- ☐ The company name and number match the information held on the public Register.
- You have included a certified copy of the instrument with this form.
- ☐ You have entered the date on which the charge was created.
- You have shown the names of persons entitled to the charge.
- ☐ You have ticked any appropriate boxes in Sections 3, 5, 6, 7 & 8.
- You have given a description in Section 4, if appropriate.
- You have signed the form.
- ☐ You have enclosed the correct fee.
- ☐ Please do not send the original instrument; it must be a certified copy.

## Important information

Please note that all information on this form will appear on the public record.

## £ How to pay

A fee of £23 is payable to Companies House in respect of each mortgage or charge filed on paper.

Make cheques or postal orders payable to 'Companies House.'

## Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House address. However, for expediency, we advise you to return it to the appropriate address below:

For companies registered in England and Wales: The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ. DX 33050 Cardiff.

For companies registered in Scotland: The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2, 139 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF. DX ED235 Edinburgh 1 or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post).

## For companies registered in Northern Ireland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street, Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG. DX 481 N.R. Belfast 1.

## Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse or email enquiries@companieshouse.gov.uk

This form is available in an alternative format. Please visit the forms page on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse



# CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 4426856

Charge code: 0442 6856 0015

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that a charge dated 25th October 2018 and created by POSITIVE STEPS CHILDRENS DAY NURSERY LIMITED was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 5th November 2018.



Given at Companies House, Cardiff on 12th November 2018





#### 25 October 2018

## The Companies Named in Schedule 1

(as the Chargors)

In favour of

## Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation Europe Limited

(as Security Agent)

## **Security Agreement**

This Deed is subject to the terms of an Intercreditor Agreement dated 6 May 2015 between, among others, the Chargors and the Security Agent

I certify that, save for material redacted pursuant to section 859G of the Companies Act 2006, the enclosed copy of the security instrument delivered as part of this application for registration under section 859A of the Companies Act 2006 is a correct copy of the original security instrument.

Signature: Date: 3

#### **CONTENTS**

Clause		Page
1.	DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION	1
2.	SECURITY	7
3.	RESTRICTIONS ON DEALING WITH SECURITY ASSETS	10
4.	FURTHER ASSURANCE	10
5.	REAL PROPERTY	10
6.	BANK ACCOUNTS	13
7.	RECEIVABLES	14
8.	SHARES	15
9.	INVESTMENTS	17
10.	INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY	18
11.	INSURANCES	18
12.	ASSIGNED AGREEMENTS	19
13.	GENERAL UNDERTAKINGS	20
14.	REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES	20
15.	ENFORCEMENT OF SECURITY	20
16.	LAW OF PROPERTY ACT	21
17.	APPOINTMENT OF RECEIVERS AND ADMINISTRATORS	21
18.	RIGHTS AND LIABILITIES OF SECURITY AGENT AND RECEIVERS	22
19.	ORDER OF APPLICATION	24
20.	POWER OF ATTORNEY	24
21.	PROTECTION OF THIRD PARTIES	24
22.	SAVING PROVISIONS	25
23.	DISCHARGE OF SECURITY	27
24.	VAT	28
25.	PAYMENTS	28
26.	REMEDIES, WAIVERS AND DETERMINATIONS	28
27.	SEPARATE AND INDEPENDENT OBLIGATIONS	29
28.	ADDITIONAL CHARGORS	29
29.	COUNTERPARTS	29
30.	GOVERNING LAW	29
31.	ENFORCEMENT	29
SCHE	DULE 1	31
	THE ORIGINAL CHARGORS	
SCHE	DULE 2	33
	RIGHTS OF RECEIVERS	

SCHEDULE 3	36
MATERIAL REAL PROPERTY	
SCHEDULE 4	47
BANK ACCOUNTS	
SCHEDULE 5	59
MATERIAL INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY	
SCHEDULE 6	61
FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF CHARGED ACCOUNT	
SCHEDULE 7	64
FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF ASSIGNED ACCOUNT	
SCHEDULE 8	66
FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF INSURANCES	
SCHEDULE 9	69
FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF ASSIGNED AGREEMENTS	
SCHEDULE 10	71
CLIENT MONEY ACCOUNTS	
SCHEDULE 11	72
FORM OF SECURITY ACCESSION DEED	

THIS DEED is dated 25 October 2018 and made between:

- (1) THE COMPANIES listed in Schedule 1 (*The Original Chargors*) as original chargors (the "Original Chargors"); and
- (2) SUMITOMO MITSUI BANKING CORPORATION EUROPE LIMITED as security agent for the Secured Parties (the "Security Agent").

#### Background

- (A) On 27 September 2018, the Group raised an Additional Facility pursuant to the terms of clause 2.5 (Additional Facility) of the Facilities Agreement.
- (B) On 28 September 2018, the Group entered into an amendment and restatement agreement to the Facilities Agreement and it was a condition to the amendments contained therein that the Original Chargors enter into this Deed and provide the security granted herein.
- (C) The board of directors of each Chargor is satisfied that entering into this Deed would be most likely to promote the success of that Chargor for the benefit of its members as a whole and to the further benefit and advantage of that Chargor.
- (D) The Security Agent and each Chargor intend this document to take effect as a Deed (even though the Security Agent only executes it under hand).
- (E) The Security Agent holds the benefit of this Deed for the Secured Parties on the terms of the Finance Documents.

#### IT IS AGREED as follows:

#### 1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

#### 1.1 Definitions

In this Deed:

- "Acquisition Agreement" means the acquisition agreement dated 29 March 2017 relating to Oak Tree Nursery Investments Limited and made between Busy Bees Holdings Limited as the buyer and the Sellers (as defined therein).
- "Acquisition Documents" means the Acquisition Agreement, any warranty deed and any other agreement or document designated as an Acquisition Document by the Obligors' Agent and the Security Agent.
- "Additional Chargor" means a company which grants Security over its assets in favour of the Security Agent by executing a Security Accession Deed.
- "Administrator" means an administrator appointed under Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act.
- "Assigned Account" means, in relation to Eagle Bidco Limited, all its right, title and interest from time to time in and to the Mandatory Prepayment Account, all balances from time to time standing to the credit of or accrued or accruing on that account and all Related Rights.
- "Assigned Agreements" means, in relation to a Chargor, all of its right, title and interest from time to time in and to any Acquisition Document, any Hedging Agreement, any Intra-Group Loan Agreement and all Related Rights.
- "Bank Accounts" means the Assigned Account and the Charged Accounts.

- "Charged Accounts" means, in relation to a Chargor, all its right, title and interest from time to time in and to all current, deposit or other accounts with any bank or financial institution, all balances from time to time standing to the credit of or accrued or accruing on those accounts and all Related Rights, excluding the Excluded Accounts.
- "Client Money Accounts" means the accounts listed in Schedule 10.
- "Chargor" means an Original Chargor or an Additional Chargor.
- "CREST" means the relevant system (within the meaning of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations) operated by Euroclear UK and Ireland Limited.
- "CREST Rights" means, in relation to a Chargor, all its right, title and interest from time to time in, against and to:
- (a) any system participant or sponsoring system participant in respect of CREST;
- (b) any account forming part of CREST; and
- (c) any payment obligation of any settlement bank in respect of CREST,
- (d) in each case arising in connection with any Investment which is recorded in the relevant operator register of members (within the meaning of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations) as being held in uncertificated form and is transferable through CREST, and all Related Rights, and provided that the terms system participant, sponsoring system participant and settlement bank shall each have the meaning given to them in the Uncertificated Securities Regulations.
- "Declared Default" has the meaning given to the term "Acceleration Event" in the Intercreditor Agreement.
- "Delegate" means a delegate or sub-delegate appointed by the Security Agent or a Receiver in accordance with this Deed.
- "Excluded Accounts" means the Client Money Accounts.
- "Existing Debentures" means (i) the English law security agreement between GE Corporate Finance Bank SCA, London Branch as security agent (now replaced by Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation Europe Limited) and the chargors named therein, dated 7 May 2015; (ii) the English law security agreement between the Security Agent and Kids First Day Nurseries Limited as chargor, dated 16 March 2016; (iii) the English law security agreement between the Security Agent and Positive Steps Children Day Nursery Limited as chargor, dated 10 October 2016 and (iv) the English law security agreement between the Security Agent and original chargors listed therein, dated 6 June 2017.
- "Facilities Agreement" means the facilities agreement dated 6 May 2015 (as amended and restated on 21 July 2016, 4 April 2017, 5 May 2017 and as further amended and restated on 28 September 2018) between, among others, the Parent, the Company, certain Subsidiaries of the Parent as borrowers and guarantors, the Arrangers, the Senior Lenders, Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation Europe Limited as agent and security agent.
- "Finance Document" has the meaning given to the term "Finance Document" in the Intercreditor Agreement.
- "Fixtures" means fixtures, fittings and fixed plant, machinery and apparatus.
- "Insolvency Act" means the Insolvency Act 1986.

"Insurances" means, in relation to a Chargor, all its right, title and interest from time to time in and to all contracts and policies of insurance of any kind taken out by or on behalf of it and all Related Rights but excluding any third party liability or public liability insurance and any directors and officers insurance.

"Intellectual Property" means, in relation to a Chargor, all its right, title and interest from time to time in and to:

- (a) any patents, trade marks, service marks, designs, business names, copyrights, database rights, design rights, domain names, moral rights, inventions, confidential information, knowhow and other intellectual property rights and interests, whether registered or unregistered; and
- (b) the benefit of all applications and rights to use such assets,

and all Related Rights (in each case including any related licences and sub-licences of the same granted by it or to it).

"Intercreditor Agreement" means the intercreditor agreement dated 6 May 2015 between, among others, the Parent, the Company, GE Corporate Finance Bank SCA, London Branch as security agent and agent (now replaced by the Security Agent as the agent and security agent, respectively).

"Intra-Group Loan" means any indebtedness entered into or to be entered into between a Chargor as creditor and any member of the Group as debtor and all other present and future indebtedness, sums, obligations or liabilities (whether actual or contingent, whether owed jointly, severally or in any other capacity whatsoever) of a member of the Group to the Chargors (or any of them).

"Intra-Group Loan Agreement" means each agreement made between a Chargor as creditor and a member of the Group as debtor evidencing the terms of an Intra-Group Loan.

"Investments" means, in relation to a Chargor, all its right, title and interest from time to time in and to:

- (a) shares, stocks, debentures, units, bonds, notes, commercial paper, certificates of deposit, depository interests, securities and other investments;
- (b) warrants, options and other rights to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire securities and investments;
- (c) any other securities or investments deriving from Investments or any rights attaching or relating to securities or investments,

in each case excluding Shares and including whether in certificated or uncertificated form, held through CREST or any other electronic share clearing, transfer or settlement system, and any rights against any custodian, nominee, clearing system or other similar person holding any such right, title or interest on its behalf, and all dividends and other Related Rights.

"Law of Property Act" means the Law of Property Act 1925.

"Liabilities" means all present and future liabilities and obligations at any time of any member of the Group to any Creditor under the Debt Documents, both actual and contingent and whether incurred solely or jointly or as principal or surety or in any capacity together with any of the following matters relating to or arising in respect of those liabilities and obligations:

(a) any refinancing, novation, deferral or extension;

- (b) any claim for breach of representation, warranty or undertaking or an event of default or under any indemnity given under or in connection with any document or agreement evidencing or constituting any other liability or obligation falling within this definition;
- (c) any claim for damages or restitution; and
- (d) any claim as a result of any recovery by any Debtor of a Payment on the grounds of preference or otherwise,
- (e) and any amounts which would be included in any of the above but for any discharge, non-provability, unenforceability or non-allowance of those amounts in any insolvency or other proceedings.

"Majority Senior Creditors" has the meaning given to that term in the Intercreditor Agreement.

"Mandatory Prepayment Account" means the account described in Part 1 of Schedule 4 (Assigned Account).

#### "Material Intellectual Property" means:

- (a) the Intellectual Property (if any) specified in Schedule 5 (Material Intellectual Property); and
- (b) any other Intellectual Property which is material in context of the business of any Obligor;

#### "Material Real Property" means in relation to a Chargor, any of the following:

- (a) the property (if any) specified in Schedule 3 (*Material Real Property*) and the buildings and fixtures (including trade fixtures) on that property from time to time;
- (b) all Real Property described in Schedule 1 (Material Real Property) of any Security Accession Deed to which it is a party;
- (c) any freehold Real Property which has a market value of £1.25m (or its equivalent in other currencies) or above;
- (d) any leasehold Real Property that comprises a leasehold interest of more than 35 years left to run on the term; and
- (e) any Real Property which is designated as Material Real Property by the Obligors' Agent and the Security Agent.

"Plant and Machinery" means, in relation to a Chargor, all its right, title and interest from time to time in and to all plant and machinery and all Related Rights.

"Quasi Security" has the meaning given to that term in the Facilities Agreement.

"Real Property" means, in relation to a Chargor, all its right, title and interest from time to time in and to any freehold or leasehold property in England and Wales and other real property anywhere in the world, all Fixtures from time to time on that property, and all Related Rights.

<sup>&</sup>quot;Obligor" has the meaning given to that term in the Facilities Agreement.

<sup>&</sup>quot;Party" means a party to this Deed.

"Receivables" means, in relation to a Chargor, all its right, title and interest from time to time in and to all book and other debts of any nature, all other rights to receive money (excluding Bank Accounts), and all Related Rights.

"Receiver" means a receiver and manager or other receiver appointed in respect of all or any part of the Security Assets and shall, if allowed by law, include an administrative receiver.

#### "Related Rights" means, in relation to a Security Asset:

- any proceeds of sale, transfer or other disposal, lease, licence, sub-licence, or agreement for sale, transfer or other disposal, lease, licence or sub-licence, of that Security Asset;
- (b) any moneys or proceeds paid or payable deriving from that Security Asset;
- (c) any rights, claims, guarantees, indemnities, Security or covenants for title in relation to that Security Asset;
- (d) any awards or judgments in favour of a Chargor in relation to that Security Asset; and
- (e) any other assets deriving from, or relating to, that Security Asset.

"Secured Obligations" has the meaning given to that term in the Intercreditor Agreement.

"Secured Party" means the Security Agent, any Receiver or Delegate and each of the other Senior Creditors from time to time, but in the case of each Senior Creditor, only if it is a party or has acceded to the Intercreditor Agreement in the appropriate capacity.

"Security Accession Deed" means a document substantially in the form set out in Schedule 11 (Form of Security Accession Deed).

"Security Assets" means the assets which from time to time are, or expressed to be, the subject of the Security or any part of those assets.

"Security" means all or any of the Security created or expressed to be created in favour of the Security Agent by or pursuant to this Deed or any Security Accession Deed.

"Shares" means, in relation to a Chargor, all its right, title and interest from time to time, both present and future, in and to:

- (a) the shares described in the Existing Debentures;
- (b) the shares in its Subsidiaries that are incorporated in England and Wales or Scotland;
- (c) in respect of any Acceding Chargor, the shares described in Schedule 3 (Shares) of any Security Accession Deed to which it is a party, any other shares issued by any person identified in Schedule 3 (Shares) of that Security Accession Deed as issuer of any such shares and the shares in its Subsidiaries that are incorporated in England and Wales or Scotland;
- (d) warrants, options and other rights to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire any such shares;
- (e) any other securities or investments deriving from any such shares or any rights attaching or relating to any such shares,

in each case including any rights against any custodian, nominee, clearing system or other similar person holding any such right, title or interest on its behalf, and all dividends and other Related Rights.

"Uncertificated Securities Regulations" means the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001.

#### 1.2 Incorporation of defined terms

Unless a contrary indication appears, terms defined in the Intercreditor Agreement have the same meaning in this Deed.

#### 1.3 Construction

- (a) Any reference in this Deed to a "Finance Document", "Debt Document" or any other agreement or instrument is a reference to that Finance Document, Debt Document or other agreement or instrument as amended, novated, supplemented, extended, restated (however fundamentally and whether or not more onerously) or replaced and includes any change in the purpose of, any extension of or any increase in any facility or the addition of any new facility under that Finance Document, Debt Document or other agreement or instrument.
- (b) The provisions in clause 1.2 (*Construction*) of the Intercreditor Agreement apply to this Deed, except that references to the Intercreditor Agreement shall be construed as references to this Deed.
- (c) In this Deed any reference to this "**Deed**" includes, in respect of any Additional Chargor, any Security Accession Deed to which it is a party.

#### 1.4 Third party rights

- (a) Unless expressly provided to the contrary in a Finance Document, a person who is not a Party has no right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 (the "Third Parties Act") to enforce or to enjoy the benefit of any term of this Deed.
- (b) Notwithstanding any term of any Finance Document, the consent of any person who is not a Party is not required to rescind or vary this Deed at any time.

#### 1.5 Disposition

The terms of the other Finance Documents and of any other agreement or instrument between the Parties are incorporated into each Finance Document to the extent required for any disposition or purported disposition of all or any part of any Real Property or any other relevant Security Asset contained in any Finance Document to be a valid disposition in accordance with section 2(1) of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989.

#### 1.6 Intercreditor Agreement

This Deed is subject to, and has the benefit of, the Intercreditor Agreement. In the event of any inconsistency between this Deed and the Intercreditor Agreement, the Intercreditor Agreement shall prevail.

#### 2. SECURITY

#### 2.1 Creation of Security

- (a) Subject to Clause 2.7 (Excluded assets) and the Existing Debentures to which each Chargor is a party, each Chargor, with full title guarantee and as security for the payment of all Secured Obligations, charges in favour of the Security Agent:
  - (i) by way of first legal mortgage, all Material Real Property in England and Wales (including, in respect of an Original Chargor, that described in Schedule 3 (Material Real Property) and in respect of an Additional Chargor, that described in Schedule 1 (Material Real Property) of any Security Accession Deed to which it is a party) owned by it on the date of this Deed or the date of any Security Accession Deed;
  - (ii) by way of first fixed equitable charge, all other Real Property owned by it on
    the date of this Deed, all Real Property acquired by it after the date of this
    Deed and, to the extent not validly and effectively mortgaged under paragraph
    (i) above, all Real Property in England and Wales owned by it on the date of
    this Deed;
  - (iii) by way of first fixed charge, the Assigned Account, to the extent not validly and effectively assigned under paragraph (b) below;
  - (iv) by way of first fixed charge, all its Charged Accounts (including, in respect of an Original Chargor, those described in Part 2 of Schedule 4 (Charged Accounts) and in respect of an Additional Chargor, those described in Schedule 4 (Charged Accounts) of any Security Accession Deed to which it is a party);
  - (v) by way of first fixed charge, all its Receivables;
  - (vi) by way of first equitable mortgage, all its Shares;
  - (vii) by way of first fixed charge, all its Investments and CREST Rights;
  - (viii) by way of first fixed charge, all its right, title and interest from time to time in and to its uncalled capital and goodwill;
  - (ix) by way of first fixed charge, all its Intellectual Property (including, in respect of an Original Chargor, that described in Schedule 5 (*Material Intellectual Property*), and in respect of an Additional Chargor, that described in Schedule 5 (*Material Intellectual Property*) of any Security Accession Deed to which it is a party);
  - by way of first fixed charge, all its Plant and Machinery (except that validly and effectively mortgaged or charged under paragraph (i) or paragraph (ii) above);
  - (xi) by way of first fixed charge, all its Insurances, to the extent not validly and effectively assigned under paragraph (c) below;
  - (xii) by way of first fixed charge, all its Assigned Agreements, to the extent not validly and effectively assigned under paragraph (d) below; and

- (xiii) by way of first floating charge, all its undertaking and all its assets, both present and future (including assets expressed to be mortgaged, charged or assigned under this Clause 2.1).
- (b) Each Chargor, subject to the Existing Debentures to which each Chargor is a party, with full title guarantee and as security for the payment of all Secured Obligations, assigns to the Security Agent by way of security the Assigned Account.
- (c) Subject to Clause 2.7 (Excluded assets) and the Existing Debentures to which each Chargor is a party, each Chargor, with full title guarantee and as security for the payment of all Secured Obligations, assigns to the Security Agent by way of security all its Insurances.
- (d) Subject to Clause 2.7 (Excluded assets) and the Existing Debentures to which each Chargor is a party, each Chargor, with full title guarantee and as security for the payment of all Secured Obligations, assigns to the Security Agent by way of security all its Assigned Agreements.

#### 2.2 Ranking

The floating charge created by each Chargor under Clause 2.1 (Creation of Security) ranks:

- (a) behind all the mortgages, fixed charges and assignments created by that Chargor; but
- (b) in priority to any other Security over the Security Assets of that Chargor except for Security ranking in priority in accordance with paragraph (g) of Schedule 2 (Rights of Receivers) and the Existing Debentures to which each Chargor is a party.

#### 2.3 Conversion by notice

At any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default, the Security Agent may convert the floating charge over all or any of the Security Assets into a fixed charge by written notice to the relevant Chargor specifying the relevant Security Assets.

#### 2.4 Automatic conversion

If:

- (a) any Chargor takes any step to create any Security or Quasi Security in breach of Clause 3.1 (*Negative pledge*) or clause 3.2 (*Negative* pledge) of any Security Accession Deed over any Security Asset subject to a floating charge; or
- (b) any person takes any step to effect any expropriation, attachment, sequestration, distress or execution against any such Security Asset to the extent that such action would lead to an Event of Default following the expiry of any grace period,

the floating charge over the relevant Security Assets shall automatically and immediately be converted into a fixed charge.

#### 2.5 Security Assets situated in Scotland

Clauses 2.3 (Conversion by notice) and 2.4 (Automatic conversion) will not apply to any Security Assets situated in Scotland or governed by Scots law if, and to the extent that, a Receiver would not be capable of exercising his powers in Scotland pursuant to Section 72 of the Insolvency Act 1986 by reason of such conversion by notice or automatic conversion.

#### 2.6 Company voluntary arrangement moratorium

Obtaining a moratorium or doing anything with a view to obtaining a moratorium pursuant to Schedule A1 of the Insolvency Act (including any preliminary decision or investigation) shall not cause the floating charge over all or any of the Security Assets to crystallise until the date upon which it is permitted to crystallise in accordance with paragraph 13 of Schedule A1 of the Insolvency Act.

#### 2.7 Excluded assets

Subject to Clause 2.8 (Consents) below, unless otherwise expressly agreed in writing by the relevant Chargor, there shall be excluded from the Security created by Clause 2.1 (Creation of Security) (other than paragraphs (a)(vi), (a)(vii) and (a)(xiii) of Clause 2.1 (Creation of Security)) or clause 2.2 (Creation of Security Interests) of any Security Accession Deed and from the operation of Clause 4 (Further assurance):

- (a) any asset or any interest in an asset which a Chargor is prohibited from creating Security on or over by reason of any contract, lease, licence, instrument or other arrangement with a third party (including any asset or any interest in an asset which a Chargor is prohibited from creating Security on or over without the prior written consent of a third party); and
- (b) any asset or any interest in an asset which, if subject to any Security, would give a third party the right to terminate or otherwise amend any rights, benefits or obligations of a Chargor in respect of that asset or any interest in an asset or require any Chargor to take any action materially adverse to the interests of the Group taken as a whole.

#### 2.8 Consents

- (a) Subject to paragraph (b) and (c) below, if the consent of any party to a document is required to create fixed security over, or an assignment of, the rights of a Chargor under that document:
  - (i) that Chargor shall as soon as reasonably practicable notify the Security Agent;
  - (ii) if the Security Agent so requires, that Chargor shall use reasonable endeavours to obtain the consent of the relevant party to the creation of fixed security over or, as the case may be, an assignment of, those rights under this Deed as soon as reasonably practicable; and
  - (iii) on the date on which the consent of the relevant party is obtained, the fixed security over or, in respect of an asset expressed to be subject to an assignment, the assignment of, those rights under this Deed shall attach to those rights.
- (b) The requirement in paragraph (a)(ii) above for a Chargor to use reasonable endeavours to obtain the consent of the relevant party to the creation of fixed security over or, as the case may be, an assignment of, those rights under this Deed as soon as reasonably practicable shall be subject to the relevant document being material in the context of the business of the Group and such all reasonable endeavours not being reasonably likely to jeopardise the commercial relationship with the relevant third party.
- (c) For each asset which is Real Property, the relevant Chargor shall only be required to seek the consent referred to above in respect of Material Real Property. If the relevant Chargor has not been able to obtain such consent within 20 Business Days, and it

reasonably considers that it will not be able to obtain such consent, its obligation to seek such consent under this clause 2.8 shall cease.

#### 3. RESTRICTIONS ON DEALING WITH SECURITY ASSETS

#### 3.1 Negative pledge

No Chargor shall create or permit to subsist any Security or Quasi Security over any Security Asset, other than the Existing Debentures, except as permitted by the Facilities Agreement or with the prior written consent of the Security Agent (acting in accordance with the Intercreditor Agreement).

#### 3.2 Disposals

No Chargor shall enter into a single transaction or a series of transactions (whether related or not and whether voluntary or involuntary) to sell, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of any Security Asset, except as permitted by the Facilities Agreement.

#### 4. FURTHER ASSURANCE

- (a) Subject to the Agreed Security Principles, each Chargor shall promptly do all such acts or execute all such documents (including assignments, transfers, mortgages, charges, notices and instructions) as the Security Agent may reasonably specify having regard to the rights and restrictions in the Finance Documents (and in such form as the Security Agent may reasonably require in favour of the Security Agent or its nominee(s)):
  - (i) to perfect the Security created or intended to be created under or evidenced by this Deed (which may include the execution of a mortgage, charge, assignment or other Security over all or any of the assets which are, or are intended to be, the subject of the Security) or for the exercise of any rights, powers and remedies of the Security Agent or the Secured Parties provided by or pursuant to the Finance Documents or by law; or
  - (ii) to confer on the Security Agent or confer on the Secured Parties Security over any property and assets of that Chargor located in any jurisdiction equivalent or similar to the Security intended to be conferred by or pursuant to this Deed; and/or
  - (iii) to facilitate the realisation of the assets which are, or are intended to be, the subject of the Security.
- (b) Subject to the Agreed Security Principles, each Chargor shall take all such action as is available to it (including making all filings and registrations) as may be necessary for the purpose of the creation, perfection, protection or maintenance of any Security conferred or intended to be conferred on the Security Agent or the Secured Parties by or pursuant to this Deed.

#### 5. REAL PROPERTY

#### 5.1 Documents

To the extent not already deposited with the Security Agent pursuant to the Existing Debentures, each Chargor shall promptly upon written request by the Security Agent deposit with the Security Agent, and the Security Agent shall be entitled to hold, all title Deeds and documents relating to that Chargor's present and future Material Real Property.

#### 5.2 Present Material Real Property

Subject to the Agreed Security Principles and to Clause 2.8 (Consents), each Chargor shall, promptly but in any event within 60 days of the date of this Deed, in respect of all Material Real Property in England and Wales owned by it on the date of this Deed or, as the case may be, the date of any Security Accession Deed:

- (a) apply to the Land Registry for first registration of that Material Real Property (where that Material Real Property is capable of being registered at the Land Registry and is not already so registered) and for registration of it as proprietor of that Real Property;
- (b) apply to the Land Registry to register the Security created by paragraph (a)(i) of Clause 2.1 (*Creation of Security*) or paragraph (a)(i) of clause 2.2 (*Creation of Security Interests*) of any Security Accession Deed;
- (c) apply to the Land Registry requesting:
  - (i) a restriction be entered into the proprietorship register in the following form (or such other form as is agreed between the relevant Chargor and the Security Agent (each acting reasonably)):
  - (ii) "No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate or by the proprietor of any registered charge, not being a charge registered before the entry of this restriction, is to be registered without a written consent signed by the proprietor for the time being of the charge dated [ ] in favour of [ ] referred to in the charges register or its conveyancer"; and
  - (iii) the obligation to make further advances,

to be entered on the register of the title to that Material Real Property in respect of the Security created by paragraph (a)(i) of Clause 2.1 (*Creation of Security*) or paragraph (a)(i) of clause 2.2 (*Creation of Security Interests*) of any Security Accession Deed;

- (d) pay all applicable registration fees;
- (e) deal with any requisitions by the Land Registry relating to that Material Real Property and keep the Security Agent informed as to the progress of any such application for registration, the nature of any such requisitions and its response to any such requisitions,

or, if the Security Agent gives notice to that Chargor that the Security Agent will submit the relevant forms to the Land Registry, that Chargor shall provide the Security Agent within a reasonable period of such notice all duly completed forms reasonably requested by the Security Agent and all applicable registration fees.

#### 5.3 Future Material Real Property

Subject to the Agreed Security Principles, if any Chargor acquires any Material Real Property in England and Wales after the date of this Deed or, as the case may be, the date of any Security Accession Deed, that Chargor shall:

(a) promptly apply to the Land Registry for first registration of that Material Real Property (where that Material Real Property is capable of being registered at the Land Registry and is not already so registered) and for registration of it as proprietor of that Material Real Property;

- (b) promptly upon request by the Security Agent execute and deliver to the Security Agent a legal mortgage of that Material Real Property as security for the payment of all Secured Obligations;
- (c) promptly apply to the Land Registry to register the Security created by paragraph (a)(i) of Clause 2.1 (*Creation of Security Interests*) and paragraph (a)(i) of clause 2.2 (*Creation of Security Interests*) of any Security Accession Deed and any legal mortgage created pursuant to paragraph (b) above;
- (d) promptly apply to the Land Registry requesting:
  - (i) a restriction be entered into the proprietorship register in the following form (or such other form as is agreed between the relevant Chargor and the Security Agent (each acting reasonably)):
  - (ii) "No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate or by the proprietor of any registered charge, not being a charge registered before the entry of this restriction, is to be registered without a written consent signed by the proprietor for the time being of the charge dated [ ] in favour of [ ] referred to in the charges register or its conveyancer"; and
  - (iii) the obligation to make further advances,

to be entered on the register of the title to that Material Real Property in respect of the Security created by paragraph (a)(i) of Clause 2.1 (*Creation of Security*) or paragraph (a)(i) of clause 2.2 (*Creation of Security Interests*) of any Security Accession Deed and any legal mortgage created pursuant to paragraph (b) above;

- (e) promptly pay all applicable registration fees;
- (f) promptly deal with any requisitions by the Land Registry relating to that Material Real Property and keep the Security Agent informed as to the progress of any such application for registration, the nature of any such requisitions and its response to any such requisitions,

or, if the Security Agent gives notice to that Chargor that the Security Agent will submit the relevant forms to the Land Registry, that Chargor shall provide the Security Agent within a reasonable period of such notice all duly completed forms reasonably requested by the Security Agent and all applicable registration fees.

#### 5.4 Unregistered Real Property

Subject to the Agreed Security Principles, in the case of a Chargor's Material Real Property in England and Wales, both present and future, which is not registered at the Land Registry and is not required by law or this Deed to be so registered, if the title Deeds and documents are not deposited with the Security Agent, that Chargor shall promptly upon written request by the Security Agent apply to the Land Charges Registry to register:

- (a) in respect of all such Material Real Property owned by it on the date of this Deed, this Deed and the Security created by paragraph (a)(i) of Clause 2.1 (*Creation of Security*);
- (b) in respect of all such Material Real Property owned by it on the date of any Security Accession Deed to which it is a party, the Security Accession Deed and the Security created by paragraph (a)(i) of clause 2.2 (Creation of Security Interests) of that Security Accession Deed;

- (c) in respect of all such Material Real Property acquired by it after the date of this Deed, this Deed, the Security created by paragraph (a)(ii) of Clause 2.1 (Creation of Security) and any legal mortgage created pursuant to paragraph (b) of Clause 5.3 (Future Material Real Property); and
- (d) in respect of all such Material Real Property acquired by it after the date of any Security Accession Deed to which it is a party, the Security Accession Deed, the Security created by paragraph (a)(ii) of clause 2.2 (*Creation of Security Interests*) of that Security Accession Deed and any legal mortgage created pursuant to paragraph (b) of Clause 5.3 (*Future Material Real Property*).

#### 5.5 Title Information Document

On completion of the registration of any Security pursuant to this Clause 5, the relevant Chargor shall as soon as reasonably practicable supply to the Security Agent a certified copy of the relevant Title Information Document issued by the Land Registry or, as the case may be, Certificate of Registration of Land Charge issued by the Land Charges Registry.

#### 5.6 Power to remedy

- (a) If a Chargor does not comply with any provision of this Clause 5, and that failure is not remedied to the reasonable satisfaction of the Security Agent giving notice to the relevant Chargor within 10 business days the Security Agent, or any agent, contractor or other person required by the Security Agent, may take any action reasonably required by the Security Agent to comply with any such provision if, unless an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Security Agent has given the relevant Chargor reasonable prior notice of such proposed action.
- (b) The cost and expense of any action referred to in paragraph (a) above shall be borne by the relevant Chargor.
- (c) For the avoidance of doubt, prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Security Agent may not apply (or require a Chargor to apply) to the Land Registry for any restriction or notice to be entered onto the register of title of any Real Property that is not Material Real Property.

#### 6. BANK ACCOUNTS

#### 6.1 Withdrawals – Assigned Account

No Chargor shall make any withdrawal from the Assigned Account except with the prior consent of the Security Agent.

#### 6.2 Withdrawals - Charged Accounts

No Chargor shall make any withdrawal from or effect closures of any Charged Account except:

- (a) prior to the occurrence of a Declared Default, in the ordinary course of its business; or
- (b) following the occurrence of a Declared Default, with the prior written consent of the Security Agent.

#### 6.3 **Documents**

At any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default, each Chargor shall promptly upon request by the Security Agent deliver to it, and the Security Agent shall be entitled to hold,

such documents relating to that Chargor's Bank Accounts as the Security Agent requires, including any notice to the relevant bank or financial institution of the Security over any Charged Account in such form as the Security Agent requires.

#### 6.4 Notice of assignment

Each Chargor shall within 10 Business Days of the date of this Deed give:

- (a) notice of the assignment in paragraph (b) of Clause 2.1 (Creation of Security) substantially in the form set out in Schedule 7 (Form of notice of assignment of Assigned Account) (or in such other form as is acceptable to the Security Agent); and
- (b) notice of the charge in paragraph (a) of Clause 2.1 (Creation of Security) substantially in the form set out in Schedule 6 (Form of notice of assignment of Charged Account) (or in such other form as is acceptable to the Security Agent),
- (c) and shall use all reasonable endeavours to ensure that each recipient of any such notice promptly signs and returns the relevant form of acknowledgement provided that if the relevant Chargor, using all reasonable endeavours, is not able to obtain an acknowledgement from any such recipient within 20 Business Days from the date of delivery of the notice, the obligation to use all reasonable endeavours to obtain a signed form of acknowledgement shall cease.

#### 7. RECEIVABLES

#### 7.1 Payment into designated Bank Account(s)

- (a) Each Chargor shall as soon as reasonably practicable pay into the Mandatory Prepayment Account all moneys received or receivable by it that are required to be paid into the Mandatory Prepayment Account in accordance with clause 13.4 (Mandatory Prepayment Accounts) of the Facilities Agreement.
- (b) Without prejudice to paragraph (a) above, at any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default each Chargor shall immediately pay all moneys received or receivable by it from any source (including all proceeds of collection of Receivables) into the relevant Bank Account(s) designated for this purpose by the Security Agent. The Security Agent may designate different Bank Accounts for different moneys.

#### 7.2 Restrictions on dealing with Receivables

At any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default, no Chargor shall enter into a single transaction or a series of transactions (whether related or not and whether voluntary or involuntary) to sell, factor, transfer, discount or otherwise dispose of all or any part of any of its Receivables.

#### 7.3 Documents

At any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default, each Chargor shall promptly upon written request by the Security Agent deliver to it, and the Security Agent shall be entitled to hold, such documents relating to that Chargor's Receivables as the Security Agent requires.

#### 8. SHARES

#### 8.1 Notification

Each Chargor shall as soon as reasonably practicable notify the Security Agent of any intention of which it becomes aware for any Share to be held in uncertificated form and to be transferable through CREST.

#### 8.2 Documents

To the extent not already delivered to the Security Agent pursuant to the Existing Debentures, each Chargor shall on the date of this Deed or, as the case may be, the date of any Security Accession Deed and, where Shares are acquired by it after the date of this Deed or the date of any Security Accession Deed, promptly following a request by the Security Agent:

- (a) deliver to the Security Agent, or as it directs, and the Security Agent shall be entitled to hold, all certificates and other documents of title or evidence of ownership in relation to its Shares; and
- (b) deliver to the Security Agent, or as it directs, and the Security Agent shall be entitled to hold, transfers of the Shares, each executed in blank, and other documents relating to the Shares reasonably required by the Security Agent,
- (c) in each case, excluding any Shares of a Subsidiary of a Chargor incorporated in a jurisdiction other than England and Wales.

#### 8.3 Voting before enforcement

- (a) At any time prior to the occurrence of a Declared Default each Chargor shall be entitled to exercise or direct the exercise of the voting and other rights attached to any Share provided that:
  - (i) it does so for a purpose not inconsistent with any Finance Document; and
  - (ii) the exercise of or, as the case may be, the failure to exercise those rights would not have a material adverse effect on the value of the relevant Shares or the Security Assets or the ability of the Security Agent to realise the Security and would not otherwise prejudice the interests of any Secured Party under any Finance Document.

#### 8.4 Voting after enforcement

- (a) At any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default in circumstances where the Security Agent has given notice to the relevant Chargor that it intends to exercise its rights under this Clause 8.4:
  - (i) the Security Agent or the Receiver shall be entitled to exercise or direct the exercise of the voting and other rights attached to any Share; and
  - (ii) each Chargor shall comply or procure the compliance with any directions of the Security Agent or the Receiver in respect of the exercise of those rights and shall promptly execute and/or deliver to the Security Agent or the Receiver such forms of proxy as it requires with a view to enabling such person as it selects to exercise those rights.

#### 8.5 Cash dividends before enforcement

At any time prior to the occurrence of a Declared Default each Chargor shall be entitled to retain any cash dividend deriving from the Shares.

#### 8.6 Cash dividends after enforcement

At any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default each Chargor shall hold any cash dividend deriving from the Shares received by it on trust for the Secured Parties and transfer or pay the same immediately to the Security Agent or as it may direct.

#### 8.7 Shares held by nominees of Chargors

If any Share is held in the name of a nominee of a Chargor, that Chargor shall promptly upon written request by the Security Agent deliver to it an irrevocable power of attorney, expressed to be given by way of security and executed as a Deed by that nominee. That power of attorney shall appoint the Security Agent, each Receiver and each Delegate, as the attorney of the holder and shall be in such form as the Security Agent requires.

#### 8.8 Amendments

No Chargor shall amend, vary, novate, supplement, supersede, waive or terminate any term of the constitutional documents of any member of the Group over whose shares security is purported to be given under the terms of this Deed or any other Finance Document except in writing:

- (a) in accordance with clause 42 (Amendments and waivers) of the Facilities Agreement;
- (b) to the extent that that amendment, variation, novation, supplement, superseding, waiver or termination is permitted by the Intercreditor Agreement;
- (c) prior to or on the Closing Date, with the prior written consent of the Security Agent; or
- (d) after the Closing Date, in a way which could not be reasonably expected materially and adversely to affect the interests of the Secured Parties.

#### 8.9 Persons with Significant Control Regime

- (a) Each Chargor shall:
  - (i) within the relevant timeframe, comply with any notice it receives pursuant to Part 21A of the Companies Act 2006 from any company incorporated in the United Kingdom whose Shares constitute Charged Property; and
  - (ii) as soon as reasonably practicable provide the Security Agent with a copy of that notice and its response sent in respect of such notice.
- (b) Following the occurrence of a Declared Default, for the purposes of withdrawing any restrictions notice or for any application to the court under Schedule 1B of the Companies Act 2006, each relevant Chargor shall (and shall ensure that the relevant members of the Group will) provide such assistance as the Security Agent may request in respect of any Shares which constitute Charged Property and provide the Security Agent with all information, documents and evidence that it may request in connection with the same.

#### 9. INVESTMENTS

#### 9.1 Documents

Each Chargor shall promptly upon request by the Security Agent:

- (a) deliver to the Security Agent, or as it directs, and the Security Agent shall be entitled to hold, all certificates and other documents of title or evidence of ownership in relation to its Investments; and
- (b) deliver to the Security Agent, or as it directs, and the Security Agent shall be entitled to hold, transfers of the Investments, each executed in blank, and other documents relating to the Investments reasonably required by the Security Agent,
- (c) in each case, excluding any Shares of a Subsidiary of a Chargor incorporated in a jurisdiction other than England and Wales.

#### 9.2 Voting before enforcement

At any time prior to the occurrence of a Declared Default each Chargor shall be entitled to exercise or direct the exercise of the voting and other rights attached to any Investment provided that:

- (a) it does so for a purpose not inconsistent with any Finance Document; and
- (b) the exercise of or, as the case may be, the failure to exercise those rights would not have a material adverse effect on the value of the relevant Investment or the Security Assets or the ability of the Security Agent to realise the Security and would not otherwise prejudice the interests of any Secured Party under any Finance Document.

#### 9.3 Voting after enforcement

- (a) At any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default:
- (b) the Security Agent or the Receiver shall be entitled to exercise or direct the exercise of the voting and other rights attached to any Investment; and
- (c) each Chargor shall comply or procure the compliance with any directions of the Security Agent or the Receiver in respect of the exercise of those rights and shall promptly execute and/or deliver to the Security Agent or the Receiver such forms of proxy as it requires with a view to enabling such person as it selects to exercise those rights.

#### 9.4 Cash dividends before enforcement

At any time prior to the occurrence of a Declared Default each Chargor shall be entitled to retain any cash dividend deriving from the Investments.

#### 9.5 Cash dividends after enforcement

At any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default each Chargor shall hold any cash dividend deriving from the Investments received by it on trust for the Secured Parties and transfer or pay the same immediately to the Security Agent or as it may direct.

#### 9.6 Investments held by nominees of Chargors

If any Investment of a Chargor is held in the name of a nominee of that Chargor, that Chargor shall promptly upon written request by the Security Agent deliver to it an irrevocable power of attorney, expressed to be given by way of security and executed as a Deed by that nominee. That power of attorney shall appoint the Security Agent, each Receiver and each Delegate, as the attorney of the holder and shall be in such form as the Security Agent requires.

#### 10. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

At any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default, each Chargor shall promptly upon request by the Security Agent deliver to it, and the Security Agent shall be entitled to hold, such documents relating to that Chargor's Intellectual Property as the Security Agent requires.

#### 11. INSURANCES

#### 11.1 Documents

At any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default, each Chargor shall promptly upon request by the Security Agent deliver to it, and the Security Agent shall be entitled to hold, such contracts and policies of insurance taken out by or on behalf of it and the related premium receipts, and such other documents relating to that Chargor's Insurances, as the Security Agent requires.

#### 11.2 Enforceability

No Chargor shall do or omit to do or permit to be done or omitted anything which could reasonably be expected to render any of its Insurances which are material in the context of the business of the Group void, voidable or unenforceable.

#### 11.3 Power to insure

- (a) If a Chargor does not comply with any requirement of clause 28.20 (*Insurance*) of the Facilities Agreement, the Security Agent may take out any insurances of the assets of that Chargor or any of them reasonably required by the Security Agent which is material to the business of the group taken as a whole and may take any action reasonably required by the Security Agent to comply with any such provision.
- (b) The cost and expense of any action referred to in paragraph (a) above shall be borne by the relevant Chargor.

#### 11.4 Notice of assignment

At any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default, each Chargor shall give notice of the assignment in paragraph (c) of Clause 2.1 (Creation of Security) or, as the case may be, paragraph (b) of clause 2.2 (Creation of Security Interests) of any Security Accession Deed, substantially in the form set out in Schedule 8 (Form of notice of assignment of Insurances) (or in such other form as is acceptable to the Security Agent) and shall use reasonable endeavours to ensure that each recipient of any such notice promptly signs and returns the relevant form of acknowledgement provided that if that Chargor, using reasonable endeavours, is not able to obtain an acknowledgement from any such recipient within 20 Business Days from the date of delivery of the notice, the obligation to use reasonable endeavours to obtain a signed form of acknowledgement shall cease.

#### 11.5 Use of proceeds

The proceeds of any insurance claim shall be applied in accordance with the terms of the Facilities Agreement.

#### 12. ASSIGNED AGREEMENTS

#### 12.1 Documents

At any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default, each Chargor shall promptly upon request by the Security Agent deliver to it, and the Security Agent shall be entitled to hold, executed copies of each Assigned Agreement to which it is a party and shall promptly deliver such other documents relating to the Assigned Agreements as the Security Agent requires.

#### 12.2 Notice of assignment

Except to the extent that the relevant Counterparty has received notice by virtue of Clause 12.4 (Notice and Acknowledgement of assigned Agreements), each Chargor shall within 10 Business Days of the date of this Deed or, as the case may be, the date of any Security Accession Deed, give notice of the assignment in paragraph (d) of Clause 2.1 (Creation of Security) or paragraph (c) of clause 2.2 (Creation of Security Interests) of any Security Accession Deed, substantially in the form set out in Schedule 9 (Form of notice of assignment of Assigned Agreements) (or in such other form as is acceptable to the Security Agent) and shall use all reasonable endeavours to ensure that each recipient of any notice promptly signs and returns the relevant form of acknowledgement, provided that if that Chargor, using all reasonable endeavours, is not able to obtain an acknowledgement from any such recipient within 20 Business Days from the date of delivery of the notice, the obligation to use reasonable endeavours to obtain a signed form of acknowledgement shall cease.

#### 12.3 Chargors still liable

Each Chargor shall remain liable to perform all its obligations under each Assigned Agreement to which it is a party. Neither the Security Agent, any Receiver nor any Delegate shall be under any obligation or liability to a Chargor or any other person under or in respect of any Assigned Agreement.

#### 12.4 Notice and acknowledgement of Assigned Agreements

- (a) Each Chargor hereby gives notice to each other Chargor that it has created security by way of assignment to the Security Agent pursuant to this Debenture in relation to all its rights, title and interest in and to all money payable under each Assigned Agreement in existence on the date of this Debenture.
- (b) Until the Security Trustee provides written instructions to the contrary upon the occurrence of a Declared Default, all moneys payable to the Chargor as creditor in respect of each Assigned Agreement shall be paid to the account notified to the member of the Group as debtor by the Chargor as creditor.
- (c) Despite the assignment referred to in paragraph (a) above or the making of any payment by you to the Security Agent under or in connection with it:
  - (i) the Chargor shall remain liable to perform all its obligations under each Assigned Agreement; and
  - (ii) the Security Agent and any Delegate shall not at any time be under any obligation or liability to any party to the Assignment Agreement under or in respect of any Assigned Agreement.

- (d) Each Chargor is authorised and instructed, without requiring further approval, to provide the Security Agent with such information relating to the Assigned Agreements as it may from time to time request and to send to the Security Agent copies of all notices issued by any party to any Assignment Agreement.
- (e) The authority and instruction under this Clause 12.4 is irrevocable without the prior written consent of the Security Agent.
- (f) By signing this Debenture, each Chargor acknowledges receipt of this notice of assignment and confirms that:
  - (i) they will pay all moneys in respect of each Assigned Agreement as directed by or pursuant to this Clause 12.4;
  - (ii) they have not received any other notice of any assignment of an Assigned Agreement other than pursuant to the Existing Debentures;
  - (iii) they will not claim or exercise any set-off or counterclaim in respect of any Assigned Agreement; and
  - (iv) they will comply with the other provisions of this Clause 12.4.

#### 13. GENERAL UNDERTAKINGS

No Chargor shall do, or permit to be done, anything which could be reasonably expected to prejudice the Security in any way that is, or could reasonably be expected to be, materially adverse to the interests of the Secured Parties.

#### 14. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Each Original Chargor represents and warrants to the Security Agent that:

- (a) the assets listed in Schedules 3 (Material Real Property) to 5 (Material Intellectual Property) in respect of that Original Chargor are all the relevant material assets in which it has an interest;
- (b) no Original Chargor has any Material Real Property situated in England and Wales other than that specified in Schedule 3 (*Material Real Property*);
- (c) the balance standing to the credit of or accruing on the Client Money Accounts are client money only; and
- (d) it has not received any warning notice or restrictions notice under Schedule 1B of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of any Shares which constitute Charged Property.

#### 15. ENFORCEMENT OF SECURITY

#### 15.1 When enforceable

The Security shall be immediately enforceable on and at any time after the occurrence of a Declared Default.

#### 15.2 Enforcement action

At any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default, the Security Agent may in its absolute discretion enforce all or any part of the Security in any manner it sees fit or as directed by the Majority Senior Creditors.

#### 15.3 Law of Property Act powers

At any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default, the powers, authorities and discretions conferred by the Law of Property Act on mortgagees, including the power of sale and other powers conferred by section 101 (*Powers incident to estate or interest of mortgagee*) of the Law of Property Act, as varied and extended by this Deed, shall be immediately exercisable.

#### 16. LAW OF PROPERTY ACT

#### 16.1 Section 101

The power of sale and other powers conferred by section 101 (*Powers incident to estate or interest of mortgagee*) of the Law of Property Act on mortgagees, as varied and extended by this Deed, shall arise (and the Secured Obligations shall be deemed due and payable for that purpose) on the date of this Deed and in respect of any Additional Chargor, on the date of the relevant Security Accession Deed to which it is a party and shall be exercisable in accordance with Clause 15.3 (*Law of Property Act powers*).

#### 16.2 **Section 103**

Section 103 (Regulation of exercise of power of sale) of the Law of Property Act shall not apply to this Deed.

#### 16.3 **Section 93**

Section 93 (Restriction on consolidation of mortgages) of the Law of Property Act shall not apply to this Deed.

#### 16.4 Sections 99 and 100

At any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default, the Security Agent may make any lease or agreement for lease, accept any surrender of lease and grant any option as it sees fit and without the need to comply with any provision of section 99 (Leasing powers of mortgagor and mortgagee in possession) or section 100 (Powers of mortgagor and mortgagee in possession to accept surrenders of leases) of the Law of Property Act.

#### 17. APPOINTMENT OF RECEIVERS AND ADMINISTRATORS

#### 17.1 Appointment of Receivers

If:

- (a) requested by any Chargor; or
- (b) a Declared Default has occurred,

without any notice or further notice, the Security Agent may, by Deed or otherwise in writing signed by the Security Agent or any person authorised for this purpose by the Security Agent, appoint one or more persons to be a Receiver of all or any part of the Security Assets. The Security Agent may similarly remove any Receiver and appoint any person instead of any Receiver. If the Security Agent appoints more than one person as Receiver, the Security Agent may give those persons power to act either jointly or severally.

#### 17.2 Appointment of Administrators

Paragraph 14 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act applies to this Deed and the Security Agent may appoint an Administrator of any Chargor pursuant to that paragraph.

#### 17.3 Agent of Chargor

Any Receiver shall be the agent of the relevant Chargor for all purposes. That Chargor alone shall be responsible for the Receiver's contracts, engagements, acts, omissions and defaults.

#### 17.4 Remuneration of Receivers

The Security Agent may determine the remuneration of any Receiver and the maximum rate specified in section 109(6) (Appointment, powers, remuneration and duties of receiver) of the Law of Property Act shall not apply. The Security Agent may direct payment of that remuneration out of moneys it receives as Receiver. The relevant Chargor alone shall be liable for the remuneration and all other costs, losses, liabilities and expenses of the Receiver.

#### 18. RIGHTS AND LIABILITIES OF SECURITY AGENT AND RECEIVERS

#### 18.1 Rights of Receivers

Any Receiver appointed pursuant to Clause 17 (Appointment of Receivers and Administrators) shall have:

- (a) the rights set out in Schedule 2 (Rights of Receivers); and
- (b) the rights, powers, privileges and immunities conferred by law, including:
  - (i) in the case of an administrative receiver, the rights, powers, privileges and immunities conferred by the Insolvency Act on administrative receivers duly appointed under the Insolvency Act; and
  - (ii) in all other cases, the rights, powers, privileges and immunities conferred by the Law of Property Act and the Insolvency Act on receivers or receivers and managers.

#### 18.2 Rights of Security Agent

At any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any rights conferred by any Finance Document or by law upon a Receiver may be exercised by the Security Agent, whether or not the Security Agent shall have appointed a Receiver of all or any part of the Security Assets.

#### 18.3 Delegation

The Security Agent may delegate in any manner to any person any rights exercisable by the Security Agent under any Finance Document. Any such delegation may be made upon such terms and conditions (including power to sub-delegate) as the Security Agent thinks fit and the Security Agent may pass confidential information to any such delegate.

#### 18.4 Financial collateral arrangement

(a) To the extent that this Deed constitutes a "financial collateral arrangement" (as defined in the Financial Collateral Arrangements (No. 2) Regulations 2003 (the "Financial Collateral Regulations")) the Security Agent shall have the right:

- (i) to use and dispose of any Security Asset which constitutes "financial collateral" (as defined in the Financial Collateral Regulations ("Financial Collateral")) in such manner as it sees fit, in which case the Security Agent shall comply with any requirements of the Financial Collateral Regulations in relation to obtaining "equivalent financial collateral" (as defined in the Financial Collateral Regulations);
- (ii) to set-off the value of any equivalent financial collateral against, or apply it in discharge of, any Secured Obligations in accordance with the Financial Collateral Regulations; and
- (iii) at any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default, to appropriate any Security Asset which constitutes Financial Collateral in such manner as it sees fit in or towards satisfaction of the Secured Obligations in accordance with the Financial Collateral Regulations.
- (b) If the Security Agent is required to value any equivalent financial collateral or Financial Collateral for the purpose of paragraph (a)(ii) or (a)(iii) above, the value shall be:
  - (i) in the case of cash, its face value at the time of appropriation or set-off; and
  - (ii) in the case of financial instruments or other Financial Collateral, their market value at the time of appropriation or set-off as determined (after appropriation) by the Security Agent by reference to a public index or other applicable generally recognised source or such other process as the Security Agent may select, including a valuation carried out by an independent investment bank, firm of accountants or other valuers appointed by the Security Agent,
  - (iii) as converted, where necessary, into the currency in which the Secured Obligations are denominated at a market rate of exchange prevailing at the time of appropriation or set-off selected by the Security Agent. The Parties agree that the methods of valuation set out in this paragraph (b) are commercially reasonable for the purpose of the Financial Collateral Regulations.
- (c) Each Chargor authorises the Security Agent to transfer any Security Asset which constitutes Financial Collateral in accordance with the Financial Collateral Regulations, and any such Security Asset shall pass from the relevant Chargor to the Security Agent by way of outright title transfer, free and clear of any liens, claims, charges or encumbrances or any other interest of any Chargor or any third party. The Security Agent shall, accordingly, have the right to deal with, lend, dispose of, pledge, charge or otherwise use any Security Asset which constitutes Financial Collateral.

#### 18.5 Possession

If the Security Agent, any Receiver or any Delegate takes possession of the Security Assets, it may at any time relinquish possession. Neither the Security Agent, any Receiver nor any Delegate shall be liable, by reason of viewing or repairing any of the present or future assets of any Chargor, as a mortgagee in possession.

#### 18.6 Security Agent's liability

Neither the Security Agent, any Receiver nor any Delegate shall, either by reason of taking possession of the Security Assets or for any other reason and whether as mortgagee in possession or otherwise, be liable for:

- (a) any costs, losses, liabilities or expenses relating to the realisation of any Security Assets; or
- (b) any act or omission of the Security Agent, any Receiver, any Delegate or their respective officers, employees or agents in relation to the Security Assets or in connection with the Finance Documents, unless directly caused by its gross negligence or wilful misconduct.

#### 19. ORDER OF APPLICATION

All amounts from time to time received or recovered by the Security Agent or any Receiver pursuant to the terms of this Deed or in connection with the realisation or enforcement of all or any part of the Security shall be held by the Security Agent on trust to apply them at any time as the Security Agent (in its discretion) sees fit, to the extent permitted by applicable law, in the order of priority provided for in clause 15.1 (Order of application) of the Intercreditor Agreement.

#### 20. POWER OF ATTORNEY

#### 20.1 Appointment

Each Chargor by way of security irrevocably appoints the Security Agent, each Receiver and each Delegate severally to be its attorney (with full power of substitution), on its behalf and in its name or otherwise, at any time following the occurrence of a Declared Default or following a failure by the relevant Chargor to comply with any request made of it by the Security Agent pursuant to Clause 4 (Further assurance), at such time and in such manner as the attorney thinks fit:

- (a) to do anything which that Chargor is obliged to do under any Finance Document to which it is party but has failed to do (including to do all such acts or execute all such documents, assignments, transfers, mortgages, charges, notices, instructions, filings and registrations as the Security Agent may reasonably specify (and in such form as the Security Agent may reasonably require in favour of the Security Agent or its nominee(s))); and
- (b) to exercise any of the rights conferred on the Security Agent, any Receiver or any Delegate in relation to the Security Assets or under any Finance Document or under any law.

#### 20.2 Ratification

Each Chargor ratifies and confirms and agrees to ratify and confirm whatever any such attorney shall do in the exercise or purported exercise of the power of attorney granted by it in Clause 20.1 (*Appointment*).

#### 21. PROTECTION OF THIRD PARTIES

No purchaser or other person dealing with the Security Agent, any Receiver or its agents shall be concerned to enquire:

- (a) whether the powers conferred on the Security Agent, any Receiver or its agents have arisen;
- (b) whether the powers conferred on the Security Agent, any Receiver or its agents have become exercisable;

- (c) whether any consents, regulations, restrictions or directions relating to such powers have been obtained or complied with;
- (d) whether the Security Agent, any Receiver or its agents is acting within such powers;
- (e) whether any money remains due under the Finance Documents and the receipt in writing of the Security Agent, any Receiver or its agents shall be sufficient discharge to that purchaser or other person;
- (f) as to the propriety or validity of acts purporting or intended to be in exercise of any such powers; or
- (g) as to the application of any money paid to the Security Agent, any Receiver or its agents.

#### 22. SAVING PROVISIONS

#### 22.1 Continuing Security

Subject to Clause 23 (*Discharge of Security*), the Security is continuing Security and will extend to the ultimate balance of the Secured Obligations, regardless of any intermediate payment or discharge in whole or in part.

#### 22.2 Reinstatement

If any discharge, release or arrangement (whether in respect of the obligations of any Chargor or Obligor or any security for those obligations or otherwise) is made by a Secured Party in whole or in part on the basis of any payment, security or other disposition which is avoided or must be restored in insolvency, liquidation or otherwise, without limitation, then the liability of each Chargor and Obligor and the Security will continue or be reinstated as if the discharge, release or arrangement had not occurred.

#### 22.3 Waiver of defences

Neither the obligations of each Chargor under this Deed nor the Security will be affected by an act, omission, matter or thing which, but for this Clause 22.3, would reduce, release or prejudice any of its obligations under any Finance Document or any of the Security (without limitation and whether or not known to it or any Secured Party) including:

- (a) any time, waiver or consent granted to, or composition with, any Chargor, Obligor or other person;
- (b) the release of any other Chargor, Obligor or any other person under the terms of any composition or arrangement with any creditor of any member of the Group;
- (c) the taking, variation, compromise, exchange, renewal or release of, or refusal or neglect to perfect, take up or enforce, any rights against, or security over assets of, any Chargor, Obligor or other person or any non-presentation or non-observance of any formality or other requirement in respect of any instrument or any failure to realise the full value of any security;
- (d) any incapacity or lack of power, authority or legal personality of or dissolution or change in the members or status of any Chargor, Obligor or any other person;
- (e) any amendment, novation, supplement, extension, restatement (however fundamental and whether or not more onerous) or replacement of any Finance Document or any other document or security including any change in the purpose of, any extension of or

any increase in any facility or the addition of any new facility under any Finance Document or other document or security;

- (f) any unenforceability, illegality or invalidity of any obligation of any person under any Finance Document or any other document or security; or
- (g) any insolvency or similar proceedings.

#### 22.4 Chargor intent

Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 22.3 (Waiver of defences), each Chargor expressly confirms that it intends that the Security shall extend from time to time to any (however fundamental) variation, increase, extension or addition of or to any of the Finance Documents and/or any facility or amount made available under any of the Finance Documents for the purposes of or in connection with any of the following: business acquisitions of any nature; increasing working capital; enabling investor distributions to be made; carrying out restructurings; refinancing existing facilities; refinancing any other indebtedness; making facilities available to new borrowers; any other variation or extension of the purposes for which any such facility or amount might be made available from time to time; and any fees, costs and/or expenses associated with any of the foregoing.

#### 22.5 Immediate recourse

Each Chargor waives any right it may have of first requiring any Secured Party (or any trustee or agent on its behalf) to proceed against or enforce any other rights or security or claim payment from any person before claiming from that Chargor under this Deed. This waiver applies irrespective of any law or any provision of a Finance Document to the contrary.

#### 22.6 Appropriations

Until all amounts which may be or become payable by the Obligors or the Chargors under or in connection with the Finance Documents have been irrevocably paid in full and all facilities which might give rise to Secured Obligations have terminated, each Secured Party (or any trustee or agent on its behalf) may:

- (a) refrain from applying or enforcing any other moneys, security or rights held or received by that Secured Party (or any trustee or agent on its behalf) in respect of those amounts, or apply and enforce the same in such manner and order as it sees fit (whether against those amounts or otherwise) and no Chargor shall be entitled to the benefit of the same; and
- (b) hold in an interest-bearing suspense account any moneys received from any Chargor or on account of any Chargor's liability under this Deed.

#### 22.7 Deferral of Chargors' rights

Subject to the terms of the Finance Documents, until all amounts which may be or become payable by the Obligors or the Chargors under or in connection with the Finance Documents have been irrevocably paid in full and all facilities which might give rise to Secured Obligations have terminated and unless the Security Agent otherwise directs, no Chargor will exercise any rights which it may have by reason of performance by it of its obligations under the Finance Documents or by reason of any amount being payable, or liability arising, under the Finance Documents:

(a) to be indemnified by a Chargor or an Obligor;

- (b) to claim any contribution from any other Chargor or guarantor of any Obligor's obligations under the Finance Documents;
- (c) to take the benefit (in whole or in part and whether by way of subrogation or otherwise) of any rights of the Secured Parties under the Finance Documents or of any other guarantee or security taken pursuant to, or in connection with, the Finance Documents by any Secured Party;
- (d) to bring legal or other proceedings for an order requiring any Obligor or any Chargor to make any payment, or perform any obligation, in respect of which the Obligor or the Chargor had given a guarantee, undertaking or indemnity;
- (e) to exercise any right of set-off against any Obligor or any Chargor; and/or
- (f) to claim or prove as a creditor of any Obligor or any Chargor in competition with any Secured Party.

If a Chargor receives any benefit, payment or distribution in relation to such rights it shall hold that benefit, payment or distribution to the extent necessary to enable all amounts which may be or become payable to the Secured Parties by the Obligors or the Chargors under or in connection with the Finance Documents to be repaid in full on trust for the Secured Parties and shall promptly pay or transfer the same to the Security Agent or as the Security Agent may direct for application in accordance with Clause 19 (Order of application).

#### 22.8 Additional security

The Security is in addition to and are not in any way prejudiced by any other guarantee or security now or subsequently held by any Secured Party.

#### 22.9 Tacking

Each Secured Party shall comply with its obligations under the Finance Documents (including any obligation to make further advances).

#### 23. DISCHARGE OF SECURITY

#### 23.1 Final redemption

- (a) Subject to Clause 23.2 (*Retention of security*), once all amounts which may be or become payable by the Obligors or the Chargors under or in connection with the Finance Documents have been irrevocably paid in full and that all facilities which might give rise to Secured Obligations have terminated, the Security Agent shall at the request and cost of the Chargors promptly release, reassign or discharge (as appropriate) the Security Assets from the Security, without recourse to, or any representation or warranty by, the Security Agent or any of its nominees.
- (b) Subject to clause 13.1 (Non-Distressed Disposals) of the Intercreditor Agreement, the Security Agent shall at the request and cost of the relevant Chargor (and without any consent, sanction, authority or further confirmation from any other Secured Party) release, reassign or discharge (as appropriate) any Security Asset from the Security and provide a certificate of non-crystallisation of the floating charge created under this Deed (insofar as that charge has not crystallised).

#### 23.2 Retention of security

If the Security Agent considers, having taken appropriate legal advice, that any amount paid or credited to any Secured Party under any Finance Document could reasonably be expected to

be avoided or otherwise set aside, that amount shall not be considered to have been paid for the purposes of determining whether all the Secured Obligations have been irrevocably paid.

#### 24. VAT

Clause 19.7 (VAT) of the Facilities Agreement shall apply as if it were set out in full in this Deed, save that references in that clause to "Finance Party" shall be treated in this Deed as being to "Secured Party".

#### 25. PAYMENTS

#### 25.1 Undertaking to pay

Subject to any limits on its liability specifically recorded in the Finance Documents each Chargor shall pay each of the Secured Obligations when due in accordance with its terms.

#### 25.2 Demands

Any demand for payment made by any Secured Party shall be valid and effective even if it contains no statement of the relevant Secured Obligations or an inaccurate or incomplete statement of them.

#### 25.3 Payments

All payments by any Chargor under this Deed shall be made to such account, with such financial institution and in such other manner as the Security Agent may direct.

#### 25.4 Continuation of accounts

- (a) At any time after a Secured Party has received or is deemed to have received notice of any subsequent Security affecting all or any part of the Security Assets of any Chargor, that Secured Party may open a new account in the name of that Chargor (whether or not it permits any existing account to continue).
- (b) If that Secured Party does not open such a new account, it shall be treated as if it had done so when the relevant notice was received or deemed to have been received and as from that time all payments made by or on behalf of that Chargor to that Secured Party shall be credited or be treated as having been credited to the relevant new account and not as having been applied in reduction of the Secured Obligations as at the time the relevant notice was received or deemed to have been received.

#### 25.5 Contingencies

If all or any part of the Security is enforced at a time when no amount is due under the Finance Documents but any such amount may or will become due, the Security Agent or the Receiver may pay the proceeds of any recoveries effected by it into a suspense account.

#### 26. REMEDIES, WAIVERS AND DETERMINATIONS

#### 26.1 Remedies and waivers

No failure to exercise, nor any delay in exercising, on the part of any Secured Party, any right or remedy under any Finance Document shall operate as a waiver of any such right or remedy or constitute an election to affirm any of the Finance Documents. No waiver or election to affirm any of the Finance Documents on the part of any Secured Party shall be effective unless in writing. No single or partial exercise of any right or remedy shall prevent any further or other exercise or the exercise of any other right or remedy. The rights and remedies provided

in the Finance Documents are cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by law, including the right to appoint an Administrator under the Insolvency Act.

#### 26.2 Certificates and determinations

Any certification or determination by the Security Agent or any Receiver of a rate or amount under any Finance Document is, in the absence of manifest error, conclusive evidence of the matters to which it relates.

#### 27. SEPARATE AND INDEPENDENT OBLIGATIONS

- (a) Subject to paragraph (b) below, the Security created by each Chargor by or in connection with any Finance Document is separate from and independent of the Security created or intended to be created by any other Chargor by or in connection with any Finance Document.
- (b) Any reference in this Deed to a "Chargor" in relation to any Security Asset is, if that Chargor holds any right, title or interest in that Security Asset jointly with any other Chargor, a reference to those Chargors jointly.

#### 28. ADDITIONAL CHARGORS

- (a) The Parent may request that any other member of the Group become an Additional Chargor.
- (b) A member of the Group shall become an Additional Chargor if the Parent and the proposed Additional Chargor deliver to the Security Agent a duly completed and executed Security Accession Deed.
- (c) The Security Agent shall notify the Parent and the Senior Lenders promptly upon being satisfied that it has received (in form and substance satisfactory to it) a duly completed and executed Security Accession Deed.
- (d) Other than to the extent the Majority Senior Lenders notify the Security Agent in writing to the contrary before the Security Agent gives the notification described in paragraph (c) above, the Senior Lenders authorise (but do not require) the Security Agent to give that notification. The Security Agent shall not be liable for any damages, costs or losses whatsoever as a result of giving any such notification.

#### 29. COUNTERPARTS

This Deed may be executed in any number of counterparts, and this has the same effect as if the signatures on the counterparts were on a single copy of this Deed.

#### 30. GOVERNING LAW

This Deed and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law.

#### 31. ENFORCEMENT

(a) The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Deed (including a dispute relating to the existence, validity or termination of this Deed or any non-contractual obligation arising out of or in connection with this Deed) (a "Dispute").

- (b) The Parties agree that the courts of England are the most appropriate and convenient courts to settle Disputes and accordingly no Party will argue to the contrary.
- (c) This Clause 31 is for the benefit of the Security Agent only. As a result, the Security Agent shall not be prevented from taking proceedings relating to a Dispute in any other courts with jurisdiction. To the extent allowed by law, the Security Agent may take concurrent proceedings in any number of jurisdictions.

This Deed has been delivered on the date stated at the beginning of this Deed.

# THE ORIGINAL CHARGORS

Name of Original Chargor	Registration Number (or equivalent, if any)
Eagle Midco Limited	08738840
Eagle Bidco Limited	08738842
Eagle Target Limited	06903394
Busy Bees Holdings Limited	06903391
Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	03454787
Busy Bees Day Nurseries (Trading) Limited	03229362
Busy Bees Day Nurseries Limited	00861615
Learning Just Limited	04330647
Early Years Child Care Limited	02455564
Just Learning Malling Limited	06990475
Just Learning Ltd.	02809756
Nu Nu Limited	04228930
Paintkey Limited	06387390
Kinder Nurseries Ltd	02468063
Caring Daycare Limited	03298327
Major Minors Limited	04118236
Rosevale Holdings Limited	05429215
Eagle Target 2 Limited	09276094
Busy Bees Education & Training Limited	03026494
Busy Bees Nurseries (Scotland) Limited	SC118818
Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	04360667
Positive Steps Childrens Day Nursery Limited	04426856
Cashew Holdings Limited	06227755
CR Childcare Limited	05763645

Eagle Target 3 Limited	09761122
Eagle Target 4 Limited	10586002
Forest Nursery Investments Limited	04020400
Happy Child Limited	03302206
Happy Child (Mottingham) Limited	06479176
HCL Acquisitions Limited	06274291
HCL Finance Limited	06274276
Kindercare (Harrogate) Limited	02740366
Oak Tree Nursery Investments Limited	07909394
Playtime Nursery Limited	06469921
Queen of Hearts Nursery School Limited	03055866
The Green Umbrella Day Nursery Limited	05363794
Toybox Day Nurseries Limited	03548718
Treetops Belper Limited	07208287
Treetops Cheam Limited	07060715
Treetops Clipstone Limited	07208149
Treetops Epsom Limited	07060590
Treetops Gloucestershire Limited	07083272
Treetops Nurseries Limited	02537480
Treetops Nurseries (London) Limited	06796022
Eagle Target 5 Limited	10836436
Eagle Leasing Limited	10800823
Eagle Target 6 Limited	11095696
L	

#### RIGHTS OF RECEIVERS

Any Receiver appointed pursuant to Clause 17 (Appointment of Receivers and Administrators) shall have the right, either in its own name or in the name of the relevant Chargor or otherwise and in such manner and upon such terms and conditions as the Receiver thinks fit, and either alone or jointly with any other person:

#### (a) Enter into possession

to take possession of, get in and collect all or any part of the Security Assets, and to require payment to it or to any Secured Party of any Receivables;

### (b) Bank Accounts

to apply, transfer or set-off any or all of the credit balances from time to time on any Bank Account in or towards payment or other satisfaction of all or part of the Secured Obligations;

### (c) Carry on business

to manage and carry on any business of that Chargor;

#### (d) Contracts

to enter into any contract or arrangement and to perform, repudiate, rescind or vary any contract or arrangement to which that Chargor is a party;

### (e) Deal with Security Assets

to sell, transfer, assign, exchange, hire out, lend, licence or otherwise dispose of or realise all or any part of the Security Assets (including any Fixtures, which may be sold separately from the related Real Property) to any person either by public offer or auction, tender or private contract and for a consideration of any kind (which may be payable or delivered in one amount or by instalments or deferred);

## (f) Hive down

to form a new company and to subscribe for or acquire (for cash or otherwise) any investment in or of the new company and to sell, transfer, assign, exchange and otherwise dispose of or realise any such investments or any rights attaching thereto;

#### (g) Borrow money

to borrow or raise money either unsecured or on the security of all or any part of the Security Assets (either in priority to the Security or otherwise);

# (h) Lend money

to lend money or advance credit to any person;

#### (i) Covenants and guarantees

to enter into bonds, covenants, guarantees, indemnities and other commitments;

## (j) Dealings with tenants

to grant leases, tenancies, licences and rights of user, grant renewals and accept surrenders of leases, tenancies, licences or rights of user, and otherwise to reach agreements and make arrangements with, and to make allowances to, any lessees, tenants or other persons;

# (k) Rights of ownership

to manage and use all or any part of the Security Assets and to exercise and do all such rights and things as the Receiver would be capable of exercising or doing if it were the absolute beneficial owner of all or any part of the Security Assets;

# (l) Protection of Security Assets

to insure all or any part of the Security Assets, to carry out decorations, repairs, alterations, improvements and additions to all or any part of the Security Assets (including the development or redevelopment of any Real Property), to commence and/or complete any building operation, to apply for and maintain any planning permission, building regulation approval or any other authorisation and to purchase or otherwise acquire or do anything in connection with all or any part of the Security Assets;

### (m) Legal actions

to bring, prosecute, enforce, defend and abandon actions, suits and proceedings relating to all or any part of the Security Assets or any business of that Chargor;

#### (n) Claims

to settle, adjust, refer to arbitration, compromise and arrange any claims, accounts, disputes, questions and demands with or by any person or relating to all or any part of the Security Assets or any business of that Chargor;

#### (o) Redemption of Security

to redeem any Security (whether or not having priority to the Security) over all or any part of the Security Assets and to settle the accounts of any person with an interest in all or any part of the Security Assets;

# (p) Employees

to appoint, hire and employ officers, employees, contractors, agents, advisors and others and to discharge any such persons and any such persons appointed, hired or employed by that Chargor;

# (q) Delegation

to delegate in any manner to any person any rights exercisable by the Receiver under any Finance Document, and any such delegation may be made upon such terms and conditions (including power to sub-delegate) as it thinks fit, and to pass confidential information to any such delegate on a confidential and "need to know" basis;

# (r) Insolvency Act

to exercise all powers set out in Schedule 1, Schedule B1 or (in the case of a Scottish Receiver) Schedule 2 to the Insolvency Act as now in force (whether or not in force at the date of exercise and whether or not the Receiver is an administrative receiver) and any powers added to Schedule 1 or Schedule 2, as the case may be, after the date of this Deed or the date of any Security Accession Deed;

# (s) Receipts

to give a valid receipt for any moneys and do anything which may be necessary or desirable for realising all or any part of Security Assets; and

# (t) Other powers

to do anything else it may think fit for the realisation of all or any part of the Security Assets or incidental to the exercise of any of the rights conferred on the Receiver under or by virtue of any Finance Document to which the relevant Chargor is party, the Law of Property Act or the Insolvency Act.

# MATERIAL REAL PROPERTY

# Part 1: Freehold Properties

No.	Charging Company	Address Or Description	Title Number
1	Busy Bees Day Nurseries Limited	Busy Bees Nursery, Turner's Crescent, Bishops Stortford (CM23 4FZ)	HD380725
2	Busy Bees Day Nurseries Limited	Land at Fernbank, Bradley Stoke (BS32 9DF)	GR200801
3	Busy Bees Day Nurseries Limited	72 Ellesmere Road, Altrincham (WA14 1JD)	GM10199
4	Busy Bees Day Nurseries (Trading) Limited	5 The Meades, Chelmsford (CM2 0GT)	EX635705
5	Busy Bees Day Nurseries (Trading) Limited	Land on the east side of Mansfield Road, Daybrook	NT332434
6	Busy Bees Day Nurseries (Trading) Limited	50 Cavell Way. Knaphill, Woking (GU21 2TJ)	SY692922
7	Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	Ashton House, Pedders Lane, Ashton On Ribble, Preston (PR2 1HL)	LA710414
8	Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	Busy Bees Nursery Ltd, Shaftesbury Drive, Burntwood (WS7 9QP)	SF419963
9	Just Learning Ltd.	Land lying to the South West of Priestley Road, Basingstoke (RG24 9NJ)	HP567193
10	Nu Nu Limited	Nunu Plc, Sitka Drive, Shrewsbury Business Park, Shrewsbury (SY2 6LG)	SL159087
11	Nu Nu Limited	Nunu Plc, Windmill Close, Wigan (WN1 3QS)	GM916443
12	Rosevale Holdings Limited	Major Minors Nursery, Bridge Road, Godalming (GU7 3DU)	SY404920
13	Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	Flemming Business Centre, Burdon Terrace, Jesmond, Newcastle upon Tyne (NE2 3AE)	TY530886
14	Kinder Nurseries Ltd	Land lying to the East of Windsor Road. Gravesend	K869396
15	Kinder Nurseries Ltd	Brompton Day Nursery & Pre School, Khartoum Road, Gillingham (ME7 5AX)	TT11204
16	Kinder Nurseries Ltd	Land at Godinton CP School, Lockholt Close, Ashford	TT23046
17	Positive Steps Childrens Day Nursery Limited	Aspley - Two Waters Methodist Church, Mill Street, Hemel Hempstead. HP3 9RZ	HD451705
18	Positive Steps Childrens Day Nursery Limited	Chichester - The Cherries, Summersdale Road, Chichester, P019 6PL	WSX236109
19	Busy Bees Day Nurseries Limited	London Road, Stevenage, Hertfordshire (SG1 1GG)	HD346285
20	Treetops Nurseries Limited	Toybox Day Nursery, The Saxon Centre. Kingsfield Road, Biggleswade (SG18 8AT)	BD224549

No.	Charging Company	Address Or Description	Title Number
21	Busy Bees Day Nurseries (Trading) Limited	Land lying to the south west of Bessemer Road, Welwyn Garden City	HD312708

Part 2: Long Leasehold Properties

No.	Charging Company	Address Or Description	Title Number	Lease details
1.	Busy Bees Day Nurseries Limited	Busy Bees Childrens Day Nursery, 5 The Fairway. Swindon (SN3 1RG)	WT169777	125 years from 1 June 1994
2.	Busy Bees Day Nurseries Limited	Leapfrog Day Nursery, Serbert Road, Portishead (BS20 7GF)	ST204971	999 years from 6 November 2001
3.	Busy Bees Day Nurseries Limited	Busy Bees, Shearwood Road, Peatmoor Village Centre, Peatmoor, Swindon (SN5 5DJ)	WT167951	125 years (less five days) from 10 October 1997
4.	Busy Bees Day Nurseries (Trading) Limited	Leapfrog Day Nursery. Carlton Park. Narborough Leicester (LE19 0LF)	LT348714	99 years from 30 September 2002
5.	Busy Bees Day Nurseries (Trading) Limited	Day Nursery, 1 Kingsmead Square. Regency Way, Northwich (CW9 8UW)	СН454566	199 years from 19 April 2000
6.	Busy Bees Day Nurseries (Trading) Limited	Leapfrog Day Nursery, Second Avenue, Centrum One Hundred, Burton-On-Trent (DE14 2WF)	SF395701	999 years from 1 December 1997
7.	Busy Bees Day Nurseries (Trading) Limited	41 Bridle Road, Bromborough. Wirral (CH62 6EE)	MS445046	99 years from 18 May 2001
8.	Busy Bees Day Nurseries (Trading) Limited	Leap Frog Day Nurseries, Wimborne Place. Daventry (NN11 0XY)	NN198695	999 years from 1 January 1998
9.	Busy Bees Day Nurseries (Trading) Limited	Leap Frog Day Nursery, Brough Shopping Park. Welton Road, Brough (HU15 1AF)	YEA4195	125 years from 6 October 1998
10.	Busy Bees Day Nurseries Limited	10 Lulworth Road, Birkdale, Southport (PR8 2AT)	MS383269	999 years from 29 September 1920
11.	Just Learning Ltd.	Unit 10, Eureka Leisure Park, Ashford (TN25 4BN)	K903437	Expires 12 July 2148

No.	Charging Company	Address Or Description	Title Number	Lease details
12.	Just Learning Ltd.	Nursery area, Bexleyheath School. Graham Road, Bexleyheath, DA6 7EG	SGL675119 SGL675120	SGL675119: expires 17 October 2030 SGL675120: expires 27 January 2101
13.	Just Learning Ltd.	Just Learning Nursery, Stoneleigh Drive, Barrs Court, Bristol (BS30 7EJ)	GR252388	125 years from 9 August 2002
14.	Just Learning Ltd.	Nursery, Old School Place, Croydon (CR0 4GB)	SGL645038	99 years from 24 June 2002
15.	Nu Nu Limited	Nunu Plc, Holmes Chapel Business Centre, Manor Lane, Holmes Chapel, Crewe (CW4 8AF)	СН487476	999 years (less ten days) from 1 September 2000
16.	Just Learning Ltd.	Just Learning Nursery, Monks Lane, Newbury (RG14 7RH)	BK375712	125 years from I March 2002
17.	Just Learning Ltd.	Just Learning Nursery, Silver Fox Way, Cobalt Business Park. Newcastle Upon Tyne (NE27 0QJ)	TY393874	125 years (less 6 days) from 29 March 1996
18.	Just Learning Ltd.	Day Nursery, Whipps Cross University Hospital, Whipps Cross Road	EGL385414	99 years from 1 March 1998
19.	Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	The Day Nursery, Colney Lane, Norwich	NK352184	Expires 31 July 2065
20.	Kinder Nurseries Ltd	Kinder Nursery, Wrotham Road, Meopham, Gravesend (DA13 0AH)	K893081	99 years from 29 April 2005
21.	Rosevale Holdings Limited	Caring Daycare House. Blackmore Crescent, Woking (GU21 5NZ)	SY727025	125 years from 30 January 2004
22.	Positive Steps Childrens Day Nursery Limited	Stokenchurch - Positive Steps Day Nursery, Lower Church Street. Stokenchurch, HP14 3TG	BM378134	125 years from 23 December 2008
23.	Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	Darlington - Leasehold land known as Kids 1st West Park Nursery. Alderman Leach Drive. Darlington, DL2 2GF	DU308521	125 years from 11 July 2007

No.	Charging Company	Address Or Description	Title Number	Lease details
24.	Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	Low Fell – Leasehold land known as 2 Telford Close, Saltwell Business Park. Gateshead, NE9 5BG	TY498531	999 years from 1 January 2011
25.	Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	QE - Leasehold land forming part of Queen Elizabeth Hospital, Sheriff Hill, Gateshead	TY529989	125 years from 26 May 2016
26.	Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	Quorum – Leasehold land known as Childrens Nursery. Benton Lane, Newcastle upon Tyrne, NE12 8FB	TY440784	125 years less 3 days from 2 April 2004
27.	Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	3 Ladygrove Day Nursery. 1 Lockstock Place, Didcot, Oxfordshire, OX11 7XT	ON202279	999 years from 5 December 1997
28.	Happy Child Limited	Kilburn Square, London, NW6 6PT	MX289256	125 years from 24 June 1997
29.	Treetops Nurseries Limited	7 Medusa Way, Sandy, Bedfordshire, SG19 1TH	BD288685	99 years from and including 7 February 2013
30.	Eagle Leasing Limited	146 Upper New Walk, Leicester, LE1 7QA	LT493375	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
31.	Eagle Leasing Limited	School Lane. Bamber Bridge, Preston, PR5 6QE	LAN194153	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
32.	Eagle Leasing Limited	170 Lutterworth Road. Blaby, Leicester, LE8 4DP	LT4933834	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
33.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Bath Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 0AF	WT431498	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
34.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Park House, Heathcote Road, Camberley, Surrey, GU15 2EU	SY847025	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
35.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Galleys Corner, Braintree. Cressing. Essex, CM77 8GA	EX958091	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
36.	Eagle Leasing Limited	48 College Road, Maidstone. Kent, ME15 6SA	TT68630	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
<b>3</b> 7.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Greenwood Close, Cardiff Gate Business Park, Cardiff, CF23 8RD	CYM717706	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
38.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Delft Way. Off Amsterdam Way. Norwich Airport. Norwich, NR6 6BB	NK471141	175 years - Ground Rent Lease

No.	Charging Company	Address Or Description	Title Number	Lense details
39.	Eagle Leasing Limited	21 Elson Road, Formby, Merseyside, L37 2EQ	MS646823	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
40.	Eagle Leasing Limited	4 Childwall Road, Wavertree, Liverpool, L15 6UU	MS646824	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
41.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Manton Lane, Bedford. MK41 7NU	BD215374	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
42.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Glanville Road. Doxford Business Park, Sunderland, SR3 3UY	TY548533	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
43.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Woodridge Avenue, Allesley Green, Coventry, CV5 7PN	MM91006	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
44.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Councillor Lane, Cheadle. Cheshire, SK8 2JF	MAN296742	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
45.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Larkspur Drive, Eastbourne, East Sussex. BN23 8BS	ESX384489	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
46.	Eagle Leasing Limited	178 Newcastle Road, Fulwell, Sunderland, SR5 1NW	TY548534	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
47.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Charity Crescent. Davies Road, Evesham, Worcestershire, WR11 2UT	WR173385	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
48.	Eagle Leasing Limited	34 - 38 Bideford Avenue. Perivale. Middlesex, UB6 8DF	AGL419500	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
49.	Eagle Leasing Limited	35 - 37 Walkden Road, Wigan, Lancashire, WN1 2JJ	MAN296744	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
50.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Butterfly Meadows, Grange Way. Molescroft, Beverley, East Yorkshire, HU17 9GP	YEA84484	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
51.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Maidens Walk, Hexham. NE46 1DR	ND189629	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
52.	Eagle Leasing Limited	19 Stoke Road, Aston Fields. Bromsgrove, B60 3EQ	WR173386	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
53.	Eagle Leasing Limited	1 St Johns Road, Sevenoaks. Kent, TN13 3LR	TT68632	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
54.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Silverdale Road, Tunbridge Wells, Kent, TN4 9HU	TT68633	175 years - Ground Rent Lease

No.	Charging Company	Address Or Description	Title Number	Lease details
55.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Ewloe, Nr Hawaden, Deeside, Flintshire, CH5 3XN	CYM717708	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
56.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Enstone Court, Wellingborough, Northants, NN8 2DR	NN350955	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
57.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Cooke Close. Wilsthorpe Road, Long Eaton, Derbyshire, NG10 3RX	DY515127	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
58.	Eagle Leasing Limited	5 Meridian Way, Norwich, NR7 0TA	NK471145	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
59.	Eagle Leasing Limited	St James Street, Lewes, East Sussex, BN7 1HR	ESX384493	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
60.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Woodhorn Lane, Ashington, Northumberland, NE63 9JJ	ND189639	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
61.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Pitfold House, Woolmer Hill Road, Haslemere, Surrey, GU27 1QA	SY847039	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
62.	Eagle Leasing Limited	4 Marlborough Road, Chiswick, London, W4 4ET	AGL419503	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
63.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Chichester Road, Dorking, Surrey, RH4 1LR	SY847040	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
64.	Eagle Leasing Limited	261 Maiden Road, Cheam, Surrey, SM3 8ET	SGL783796	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
65.	Eagle Leasing Limited	The Neighbourhood Centre, Highdown Way, St Andrews Ridge, Swindon, Wiltshire, SN25 4FD	WT431501	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
66.	Eagle Leasing Limited	53 Front Street, Cleadon, Sunderland, SR6 7PG	TY548537	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
67.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Bramcote Lane, Wollaton. Nottinghamshire, NG8 2NG	NT531741	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
68.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Old Dryburn Way, Durham. DH1 5SE	DU363547	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
69.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Rake Lane, North Shields. NE29 8NH	TY548538	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
70.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Jubilee Road, Gosforth, NE3 3PN	TY548539	175 years - Ground Rent Lease

No.	Charging Company	Address Or Description	Title Number	Lease details
71.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Gregory's Way, Belper, Derbyshire, DE56 0HS	DY515113	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
72.	Eagle Leasing Limited	13 Derby Road, Ashbourne, Derbyshire, DE6 1BE	DY515128	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
73.	Eagle Leasing Limited	7 Plymyard Avenue, Bromborough, Wirral, CH62 6BQ	MS646825	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
74.	Eagle Leasing Limited	239 Mottram Road, Hyde, Cheshire. SK14 2PE	MAN296748	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
75.	Eagle Leasing Limited	King Street, Duffield, Derbyshire, DE56 4EU	DY515129	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
76.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Woodgrange Avenue, Ealing Common, London. W5 3NY	AGL419538	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
77.	Eagle Leasing Limited	28 Grove Road, Headingley, Leeds. LS6 4EE	YY88499	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
78.	Eagle Leasing Limited	59a Longstone Avenue. Harlesden, London, NW10 3UN	AGL419540	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
79.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Park Gate Road, Chester, CH1 4BE	CH661265	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
80.	Eagle Leasing Limited	35 West Park, Eltham, London, SE9 2UW	TGL480082	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
81.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Liverpool Road, Five Ways. Neston, Cheshire, CH64 3RH	СН661290	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
82.	Eagle Leasing Limited	213 Prestbury Road, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL52 2ES	GR416713	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
83.	Eagle Leasing Limited	122 Rockingham Road. Kettering, Northamptonshire. NN16 9QG	NN350957	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
84.	Eagle Leasing Limited	70 High Street, Stotfold, Hitchin, Hertfordshire. SG5 4LD	BD315377	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
85.	Eagle Leasing Limited	146 Haunch Lane. Kings Heath, Birmingham, B13 0PY	MM91009	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
86.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Green Man Passage, (off Bayham Road), Ealing, London, W13 0TG	AGL419541	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
87.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Green Man Passage, (off Bayham Road), Ealing, London, W13 0TG	AGL419542	175 years - Ground Rent Lease

No.	Charging Company	Address Or Description	Title Number	Lease details
88.	Eagle Leasing Limited	1 St Andrews Walk, Rushmere St Andrew, Ipswich, IP4 5RE	SK378435	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
89.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Godden Way, Beechings Way Industrial Centre, Gillingham. ME8 6AD	TT68639	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
90.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Tudor Court, Wooton Hope Drive, Wootton Fields, Northampton, NN4 6DY	NN350958	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
91.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Bransby Way, Locking Castle, Weston Super Mare, BS24 7EU	ST337986	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
92.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Kingfisher Way, Hinchingbrooke, Huntington, PE29 6FN	CB425565	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
93.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Kettering Road, Northampton NN3 6AA	NN355189, NN350949	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
94.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Sudbury Hill, Off Greenford Road, Greenford, Middlesex, UB6 0HU	AGL419543	From 30 June 2017 until and including 12 January 2127 – Ground Rent Lease
95.	Eagle Leasing Limited	19 Hackett Place, Paxcroft Mead. Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 7GW	WT431503	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
96.	Eagle Leasing Limited	3 Red Hall Court, Paragon Business Village, Wakefield, WF1 2UN	YY88501	From 30 June 2017 until and including 6 March 2129 – Ground Rent Lease
97.	Eagle Leasing Limited	2 Wynyard Avenue, Wynyard Park, Billingham, TS22 5TB	CE233631	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
98.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Celtic Point, Worksop, Nottinghamshire, S81 7AZ	NT531747	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
99.	Eagle Leasing Limited	29 Smalley Drive, Oakwood, Derby DE21 2SF	DY515454	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
100.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Hollybrook Way. Heatherton Village, Littleover, Derby. DE23 3TZ	DY517412	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
101.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Ovangle Road. Lancaster. LA1 5JR	LAN194648	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
102.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Richard Street, Off Dartmouth Middleway, Aston, Birmingham, B7 4AA	MM91720	175 years - Ground Rent Lease

No.	Charging Company	Address Or Description	Title Number	Lease details
103.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Soleman Road, Rainham, Gillingham ME8 8EB	TT71316	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
104.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Hargate Way, Hampton Hargate, Peterborough, PE7 8BZ	CB425893	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
105.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Chorley, Preston, PR7 3BS	LAN194645	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
106.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Priorslee Avenue, Priorslee. Telford, Shropshire, TF2 9NR	SL247950	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
107.	Eagle Leasing Limited	20 Sutton Road, Walthamstow, London, E17 5QA	AGL420702	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
108.	Eagle Leasing Limited	15 Park Road, Guiseley, Leeds, LS20 8AR	YY91632	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
109.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Merlin Drive, Falcon Close, Quedgeley, GL2 4NJ	GR417046	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
110.	Eagle Leasing Limited	The Old Chapel. Kenny Drive, Carshalton, Surrey, SM5 4PH	SGL784151	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
111.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Whitehorse Lane, Great Ashby, Stevenage, Hertfordshire, SG1 6NH	HD573997	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
112.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Cygnet Drive, Stockton-on-Tees. TS18 3DZ	CE233794	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
113.	Eagle Leasing Limited	7 Manderston Close, Off Dibdale Road West, Dudley, DY1 2TZ	MM105387	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
114.	Eagle Leasing Limited	63 Elmwood Avenue, Harrow, HA3 8AJ	AGL426678	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
115.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Chesterfield Road, Matlock. Derbyshire, DE4 3DQ	DY521097	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
116.	Eagle Leasing Limited	Minton Close, Off Swiney Way. Toton, Nottingham, NG9 6PZ	NT532033	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
117.	Eagle Leasing Limited	2 Wellington Road, Cheltenham. Gloucestershire, GL52 2DY	GR418555	175 years - Ground Rent Lease
118.	Eagle Leasing Limited	2 Wellington Road, Cheltenham. Gloucestershire, GL52 2DY	GR418555	175 years - Ground Rent Lease

No.	Charging Company	Address Or Description	Title Number	Lease details
119.	Eagle Leasing Limited	11 Duckworth Court, Oldbrook. Milton Keynes (MK6 2RX)	BM270689 (the leasehold title number has not yet been opened: this is the landlord's freehold title number)	175 years - Ground Rent Lease

# BANK ACCOUNTS

# Part 1: Assigned Account

Name of Chargor	Bank	Sort Code	Account No.	Name of Account
Eagle Bidco Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED

# Part 2: Charged Accounts

Name of Chargor	Account Bank	Account Name	Sort Code	Account Number
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				•
(Trading) Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Kinder Nurseries	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				
Kinder Nurseries	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				
Kinder Nurseries	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				
Kinder Nurseries	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited	<u> </u>			
Kinder Nurseries	RI:DACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Scotland) Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries	1	}		
(Scotland) Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Scotland) Limited	l			
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Scotland) Limited			nen. a==	
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTI:D	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	L		L	

Name of Chargor	Account Bank	Account Name	Sort Code	Account Number
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				•
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		REDACTED		REBACTED
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	BED A CITED	REDACTED	REDACTED
	REDACTED	REDACTED	ICDAC 12D	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		<del></del>	PER LETTER	
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries	ļ	}		<b>,</b>
(Trading) Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Trading) Limited	1		1	
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Education and	ļ	REDICTED		1==1.12
Training Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		REDACTED	122110122	ICEDAC IED
	REDACTED	DED ACTED	REDACTED	DEDACTED
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				·
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited			-	
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDAC1ED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		
Eagle Target	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				
Kinder Nurseries	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				
Kinder Nurseries	REDACTED	REDACTED		REDACTED
Limited			REDACTED	
Kinder Nurseries	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited		REDACTED		SUBCILL.
Kinder Nurseries	REDACTI:D	PEDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
	23.2710 1137	REDACTED	NEDIX 1ED	REDACTED
Limited	RHDACTED	DED 4 COMED	REDACTED	DDD A CEED
Busy Bees	KENCIED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries	1			
(Scotland) Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries	1			
(Scotland) Limited			- <u>-</u>	
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries	<b>\</b>			
(Scotland) Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries	1	T .	I	1

Name of Chargor	Account Bank	Account Name	Sort Code	Account Number
(Scotland) Limited				-
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		ADDAG TED		1
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				İ
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				}
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	ļ			
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	ļ			
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	<del></del>			
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited			DED 4 CEC	
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries (Trading) Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	DED 4 CTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	1000	REDACTED		REDACTED
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		REDACTED		NED TEL
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		TED NOTES		
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	1			
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	]			
	<u> </u>			
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Scotland) Limited	REDACTED		REDACTED	DED LOTTED
Busy Bees Nurseries	REDACTED	REDACTED	VEDAC 15D	REDACTED
(Scotland) Limited				
Caring Daycare	REDACTED	DED ACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited		REDACTED	Table 1 ED	REDACTED
Kids First Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	1	REDACTED		REDACTED
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED —	REDACTED	REDACTED
Dasy Dees	<del></del>	L REDACTED		

Name of Chargor	Account Bank	Account Name	Sort Code	Account Number
Nurseries				
(Scotland) Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Scotland) Limited	ł			
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		102/101/		
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Trading) Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Trading) Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				i
(Trading) Limited				1
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Scotland) Limited				
Busy Bees	RJEDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Holdings Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Trading) Limited	<u> </u>			

Name of Chargor	Account Bank	Account Name	Sort Code	Account Number
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				1
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Trading) Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Kinder Nurseries	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				
Kinder Nurseries	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited		<u> </u>		
Kinder Nurseries	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				
Kinder Nurseries	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				j
(Trading) Limited Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	DED LOTED	REDACTED	DED ACTED
Nurseries	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
(Trading) Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries		REDACTED	1	REDACTED
(Trading) Limited			1	
Busy Bees Day	REDAC IED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries		REDACTED		1
(Trading) Limited				}
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Trading) Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Trading) Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Trading) Limited	   <u></u>			
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		<del></del>	TED LOTES	
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
D D	DED ACTION	+	BED 4 CTED	DED COMED
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED _	REDACTED	REDACTED

Name of Chargor	Account Bank	Account Name	Sort Code	Account Number
Nurseries Limited		REDACTED		
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		REDACTED		
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
•	KLDAC IED	REDACTED	ALD/K 120	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		+	DED CTED	
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		<u> </u>		
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				i
(Scotland) Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries	1		1	l
(Scotland) Limited				i
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries			İ	
(Scotland) Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		NEDITE IDD		
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Holdings Limited		REDACTED		REDITCIED
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	DED A CITED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	,Gancila	REDACTED	REDACTED	KEDACIED
	REDACTED		REDACTED	DED + CHED
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACIED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Trading) Limited	<u> </u>			
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				{
(Trading) Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				i
(Trading) Limited	1			
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Trading) Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited			İ	
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		KEDAG 122		102.1012
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		KEDACIED		INDACTED.
Kinder Nurseries	REDACTED	DEDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited		REDACTED		REDACTED
	REDACTED	DED 4 COED	REDACTED	DEDACTED
Busy Bees	VEDVC 1ED	REDACTED	KEDACIED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Scotland) Limited	4.000000		nen : care	
Busy Bees	RJEDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Scotland) Limited			<del>-</del>	
Caring Daycare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				
Caring Daycare	REDAC IED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				
Caring Daycare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		NEDACTED		
arseries Entitled	4	<u> </u>		<del></del>

Name of Chargor	Account Bank	Account Name	Sort Code	Account Number
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				1
(Trading) Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries	ļ	I REDITE IED		, MEDITO 125
(Trading) Limited				1
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		REDACTED	1	REDACTED
Busy Bees	REDACTED	DED A CEED	REDACTED	DED A CTED
	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	REDACTED		PED ACTUR	2004
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	·			<del></del>
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	<u> </u>			
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTFD	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		REDACTED		ALDI TO 12D
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	REDACTED	100/10/20	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	PED 4 COTED	REDACTED	DED A CTED
	+	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Major Minors	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				<del>-</del>
Major Minors	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited		<del></del>		
Major Minors	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				
Caring Daycare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				
Caring Daycare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited	<u> </u>			
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	<u> </u>			
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries		KLDACILD		
(Trading) Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	PEDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries	transfer to a some	REDACTED	Table 120	KEDACTED
(Trading) Limited	DED 4 G FINE		DED + COSE	nen : come
Busy Bees Day	REDAC IED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Trading) Limited	ļ			
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries	1	}	1	}

Name of Chargor	Account Bank	Account Name	Sort Code	Account Number
(Trading) Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		REDACTED		REDACTED
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		REDACTED		JEBAC12D
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	KEE/ICIE	REDACTED	, indicate and in the second	REDACTED
Busy Bees	REDACTED		REDACTED	DED A CTED
Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	KEDACTED	REDACTED
	REDACTED		DED A CTED	
Busy Bees	I REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		<del></del> -		
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	<u> </u>	<del></del>		
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	<u> </u>	<del></del>		
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		<del> </del>		
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Scotland) Limited				
Major Minors	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				
Caring Daycare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited			}	}
Caring Daycare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				ļ
Caring Daycare	RI:DACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				
Caring Daycare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited		, CDITCIES		
Caring Daycare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited		TO THE PERSON OF		1.2.1.2.1.2.2
Caring Daycare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited		REDACTED		TEBRUTE IEB
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries		KLUACTED		100.10100
(Trading) Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries	<u> </u>	REDACTED	1	ILLD/ICTED
(Trading) Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries		REDACTED		KEDACTED
(Trading) Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	DEDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries		REDACTED	100,10100	KEDACIED
(Trading) Limited				
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	DEDACTED	REDACTED	PEDACTED
Nurseries	The state of the s	REDACTED	ILDAC ILD	REDACTED
(Trading) Limited	NUDACTED	DEF:	BED + CTED	DED : Owen
Busy Bees Day	RFDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Trading) Limited	<u> </u>			<del></del>
(Trading) Limited Busy Bees Day Nurseries	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED

Name of Chargor	Account Bank	Account Name	Sort Code	Account Number
(Trading) Limited				_
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries				
(Trading) Limited				(
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries		REDACTED		TEDATE LED
(Trading) Limited		:		
Busy Bees Day	REDACTI:D	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	}	REDACTED	1.00/10.25	REDACTED
Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	DED ACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	Nask tep	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
·	REDACTED		REDACTED	DED 4 CHED
Busy Bees Day	NEDAC IED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	REDACTED		PED LOTTED	
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited			201.000	
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		<u></u>		
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	]			
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	1			_
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				l l
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	ļ.			
Positive Steps	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Childrens Day		102/10/55		
Nursery Limited		ļ		ł
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
tube normalis need.		ILD/ICIDD		
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	<del></del>	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Leathing Liu.		REDACTED		REDACTED
Just Looming Ltd	REDACTED	DED ACTED	REDACTED	PEDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED_
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	<del></del>	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	KEDWC 15D	REDACTED	REDACTED	P. 10. 10. 10. 10. 10. 10. 10. 10. 10. 10
T . T . T . T			DD	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED _	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED

Name of Chargor	Account Bank	Account Name	Sort Code	Account Number
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Liu.		KEDACTED		KLDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	<del></del>	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltu.	KEDAC IED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	<del> -</del>	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Liu.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED -	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	<del></del>	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.  Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	<del></del> -	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	SELECTED 1	REDACTED	ALL ACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited	<u></u>		<u> </u>	
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Positive Steps	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Childrens Day				
Nursery Limited				
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED

Name of Chargor	Account Bank	Account Name	Sort Code	Account Number
Nurseries Limited				
Kinder Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Kinder Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Busy Bees	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited Busy Bees Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries (Trading) Limited		,		
Busy Bees Day Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Eagle Target 4 Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Just Learning Ltd.	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Kids First Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited Kids First Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Kids First Day Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Treetops Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Treetops Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Happy Child (Mottingham) Ltd	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Happy Child (Mottingham) Ltd	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Happy Child Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Treetops Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Kindercare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED

Name of Chargor	Account Bank	Account Name	Sort Code	Account Number
(Harrogate)		REDACTED		
Limited		İ		ł
Kindercare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
(Harrogate)				
Limited				
Kindercare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
(Harrogate)				1
Limited				
Kindercare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
(Harrogate)	1			
Limited				
Kindercare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
(Harrogate)				ĺ
Limited				1
Kindercare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
(Harrogate)	1	1		
Limited				
Kindercare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
(Harrogate)				
Limited				
Kindercare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
(Harrogate)				
Limited	1	}		- }
Kindercare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
(Harrogate)				1
Limited	ļ	}		ļ
Kindercare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
(Harrogate)				
Limited				
Playtime Nursery	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited				
Toybox Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Toybox Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited				
Toybox Day	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nurseries Limited		<u></u>		
Queen of Hearts	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nursery School				
Limited				
Queen of Hearts	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Nursery School				ĺ
Limited				
CR Childcare	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Limited		<u> </u>		
The Green	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Umbrella Day				
Nursery Limited				
The Green	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED	REDACTED
Umbrella Day				
Nursery Limited				

SCHEDULE 5
MATERIAL INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

TRADE MARK	COUNTRY	OWNER	TRADE MARK NUMBER	FILING DATE	REGISTRATION DATE	EXPIRY DATE	CLASSES
BUSY BEES	EU	Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	006985469	4 June 2008	14 August 2009	4 June 2028	9. 14, 16, 25, 26, 35, 36, 41,43
NOT THE	UK	Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	UK00001 394240	8 August 1989	24 January 1992	8 August 2026	41
eart etti	UK	Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	UK00001 437414	4 August 1990	7 February 1992	4 August 2027	16, 35, 43
101 m	UK	Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	UK00002 031672	25 August 1995	14 June 1996	25 August 202 5	9. 14, 25, 26
Boar Des phy	EU	Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	006988067	4 June 2008	20 August 2009	4 June 2028	9, 14, 16, 25, 26, 35, 36, 41, 43
Gnourcare	UK	Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	UK00001 506322	10 July 1992	11 July 1997	10 July 2019	41, 42
	EU	Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	015328958	13 April 2016	12 September 2016	13 April 2026	41, 43
W. C.	UK	Kids First Day Nurseries Limited H M C Group	UK0000259 5347	21 September 2 011	6 January 2012	21 September 2021	41, 43
LEAPFRO G DAY NURSERIE S	UK	Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	UK00022 33075B	18 May 2000	19 October 2001	18 May 2020	16, 41, 43
leaption leaption leaption	UK.	Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	UK00022 33075A	18 May 2000	28 December 2001	18 May 2020	16. 41, 43
T <sub>C</sub>	UK	Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	UK00002 246688	25 September 2000	11 January 2002	25 September 2020	41
JUST LEARNIN G	UK	Just Learning Ltd	UK0000213 3630	22 May 1997	26 June 1998	22 May 2027	41,43
NV NV	UK	Nu Nu Limited	UK0000220 4612	31 July 1999	11 February 2000	31 July 2019	43
Contract of the second	UK	Positive Steps Children's Day Nursery Limited	UK0000313 4711	05 November / 2015	05 February 2016	05 November 2025	41.43
Busy	UK	Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	UK0000331 4488	31 May 2018	07 September 2018	31 May 2028	41.43

TRADE MARK	COUNTRY	OWNER	TRADE MARK NUMBER	FILING DATE	REGISTRATION DATE	EXPIRY DATE	CLASSES
TRACTORE	ÜK	Forest Nursery	UK0000227 3575	22 June 2001	15 March 2002	22 June 2021	41, 42
TRACTOR		Investments Limited					

#### FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF CHARGED ACCOUNT

From: $[ullet]$ (the "Security Agent") and $[ullet]$ (the "Chargor")
To: [Bank where Charged Account is held]
Address:
Dated:

# [Chargors] - Security Agreement dated [●] (the "Security Agreement")

1. We refer to the Security Agreement.

Dear Sirs

- 2. We give notice that by a charge contained in the Security Agreement the Chargor has, to the extent not already charged pursuant to the Existing Debentures, charged to the Security Agent by way of security all its right, title and interest from time to time in and to the Charged Account, details of which are set out in the attached schedule (the "Charged Account"), including all balances from time to time standing to the credit of or accrued or accruing on the Charged Account and all rights or claims in relation to the Charged Account.
- 3. This notice replaces and supersedes any prior notice which may have been received by you in relation to security granted over the Charged Account in favour of [●] (a "Prior Notice").
- 4. Prior to receipt by you of a notice from the Security Agent referred to in paragraph 5 below, the Chargor shall have the sole right: (i) to operate and transact business in relation to the Charged Accounts in the Schedule below (including making withdrawals from and effecting closures of the Charged Accounts); and (ii) to deal with you in relation to the Charge Accounts.
- 5. Upon receipt of written instructions from the Security Agent which state that a Declared Default (as defined in the Security Agreement) has occurred and that the security under the Security Agreement has become enforceable:
  - (a) all rights, powers and discretions of the Chargor in relation to the Charged Account shall be exercisable solely by the Security Agent;
  - (b) you agree to disclose to the Security Agent if it so requests (without any reference to or further authority from the Chargor and without any enquiry by you as to the justification for such disclosure) such information relating to any Charged Account as the Security Agent may from time to time request;
  - (c) you agree to unconditionally and irrevocably waive all rights of set-off, lien, counterclaim, combination or consolidation of accounts, security in respect of any Charged Account and similar rights (however described) which you may have now or in the future in respect of each of the Charged Accounts or the balance thereon to the extent that such rights relate to amounts owed to you by the Chargor;
  - (d) no moneys may be released from the Charged Account without the prior written consent of the Security Agent; and

- (e) you should apply any amount standing to the credit of or accrued or accruing on the Charged Account as directed from time to time by the Security Agent in writing.
- 6. This authority and instruction is irrevocable without the prior written consent of the Security Agent.
- 7. This notice and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law. The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with this notice (including a dispute relating to the existence, validity or termination of this notice or any non-contractual obligation arising out of or in connection with this notice).
- 8. Please acknowledge receipt of this notice and confirm that you will comply with the provisions of this notice by signing the acknowledgement on the attached copy of this notice and returning that copy to the Security Agent at [•], marked for the attention of [•].

[Security Agent]	[Chargor]				
By:	By:				
[On duplicate]					
We acknowledge receipt of the notice of assignment of which this is a copy and confirm each of the matters referred to in paragraph 5 of the notice.					
[Bank where Charged Account is held]					
By:					
Dated:					

#### FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF ASSIGNED ACCOUNT

From: [●] (the "Security Agent") and [●] (the "Chargor")
To: [Bank where Assigned Account is held]
Address:

Dear Sirs

Dated:

# [Chargors] - Security Agreement dated [•] (the "Security Agreement")

- 1. We refer to the Security Agreement.
- 2. We give notice that by an assignment contained in the Security Agreement the Chargor has, to the extent not already assigned pursuant to the Existing Debentures, assigned to the Security Agent by way of security all its right, title and interest from time to time in and to the Assigned Account, details of which are set out below (the "Assigned Account"), including all balances from time to time standing to the credit of or accrued or accruing on the Assigned Account and all rights or claims in relation to the Assigned Account.
- 3. The details of the Assigned Account are as follows:

Bank	Bank Sort Code		Name of Account

- 4. This notice replaces and supersedes any prior notice which may have been received by you in relation to security granted over the Assigned Account in favour of [●] (a "Prior Notice").
- 5. Until you receive written instructions from the Security Agent to the contrary:
  - (a) all rights, powers and discretions of the Chargor in relation to the Assigned Account shall be exercisable solely by the Security Agent;
  - (b) no moneys may be released from the Assigned Account without the prior written consent of the Security Agent; and
  - (c) you should apply any amount standing to the credit of or accrued or accruing on the Assigned Account as directed from time to time by the Security Agent in writing.
- 6. This authority and instruction is irrevocable without the prior written consent of the Security Agent.
- 7. This notice of assignment and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law. The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with this notice of assignment (including a dispute relating to the existence, validity or termination of this notice or any non-contractual obligation arising out of or in connection with this notice of assignment).

8.	Please acknowledge receipt of this notice of assignment and confirm that you will comply with the provisions of this notice by signing the acknowledgement on the attached copy of this notice and returning that copy to the Security Agent at $[\bullet]$ , marked for the attention of $[\bullet]$ .					
	[Security Agent] [Chargor]					
	Ву:	By:				
	[On duplicate]					
	We acknowledge receipt of the notice of assignment of which this is a copy and confirm of the matters referred to in paragraph 7 of the notice.					
	[Bank where Assigned Account is held]  By:  Dated:					

#### FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF INSURANCES

From: [●] (the "Security Agent") a	nd [●] (the "Chargor")
To: [The Insurers]	
Address:	
Dated:	
Dear Sirs	
(C	hargorsl – Security Agreemen

# [Chargors] - Security Agreement dated [●] (the "Security Agreement")

- 1. We refer to the Security Agreement.
- 2. We give notice that by an assignment contained in the Security Agreement the Chargor has, to the extent not already assigned pursuant to the Existing Debentures, assigned to the Security Agent by way of security all its right, title and interest from time to time in and to the insurances, details of which are set out in the attached schedule (the "Insurances"), including all moneys or proceeds paid or payable deriving from the Insurances and all rights or claims in relation to the Insurances.
- 3. Following receipt by you of a written notice from the Security Agent specifying that a Declared Default has occurred, all moneys payable by you to the Chargor in respect of the Insurances other than third party Insurances shall be paid to the account notified to you by the Security Agent.
- 4. Subject to any applicable legislation and despite the assignments referred to above, all sums in respect of any claim under any third party Insurance by an insured party shall be paid:
  - directly to the person whose claim(s) constitute(s) the risk or liability insured against, provided that such person has executed a discharge of all claims against each insured party in respect of the risk or liability in relation to which the claim was made; or
  - (b) (despite any policy term to the contrary) to the extent that insurers accept liability to indemnify the insured party in respect of the claims or liabilities which the insured party has settled directly with the claimant, to the relevant insured party.
- 5. We instruct you to:
  - (a) notify the Security Agent if any renewal, premium or other sum payable by the Chargor in respect of the Insurances is not paid when due;
  - (b) notify the Security Agent if the Chargor reduces the cover under the Insurances or if any risk insured against under the Insurances is restricted or cancelled; and
  - (c) if the Insurances are not renewed, cover under the Insurances is reduced or any risk insured against under the Insurances is restricted or cancelled, to provide insurances of the assets of the Chargor reasonably required by the Security Agent and upon payment of an additional premium by the Security Agent.
- 6. This authority and instruction is irrevocable without the prior written consent of the Security Agent.

- 7. This notice of assignment and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law. The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with this notice of assignment (including a dispute relating to the existence, validity or termination of this notice of assignment or any non-contractual obligation arising out of or in connection with this notice of assignment).
- 8. Please acknowledge receipt of this notice of assignment and confirm that:
  - (a) you will pay all moneys in respect of the Insurances as directed by or pursuant to this notice of assignment;
  - (b) you have not received any other notice of any assignment of any Insurance or of any other interest of any third party in any Insurance;
  - (c) you will not claim or exercise any set-off or counterclaim in respect of any Insurance; and
  - (d) you will comply with the other provisions of this notice of assignment,

by signing the acknowledgement on the attached copy of this notice of assignment and returning that copy to the Security Agent at  $[\bullet]$ , marked for the attention of  $[\bullet]$ .

[Security Agent]	[Chargor]
By:	By:
[On duplicate]	
We acknowledge receipt of the notice of assign of the matters referred to in paragraphs (a) – (d)	_ <del></del>
[The Insurers]	
By:	
Dated:	

#### **SCHEDULE 9**

#### FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF ASSIGNED AGREEMENTS

From: $[ullet]$ (the "Security Agent") and $[ullet]$ (the "Chargor")
To: [Party to the Agreement]
Address:
Dated:

# [Chargors] - Security Agreement dated [●] (the "Security Agreement")

1. We refer to the Security Agreement.

Dear Sirs

- 2. We give notice that by an assignment contained in the Security Agreement the Chargor has, to the extent not already assigned pursuant to the Existing Debentures, assigned to the Security Agent by way of security all its right, title and interest from time to time in and to the Agreements, details of which are set out in the attached schedule (the "Assigned Agreements"), including all rights or claims in relation to the Assigned Agreements.
- 3. Until you receive written instructions from the Security Agent to the contrary (upon the occurrence of a Declared Default) (as defined in the Securities Agreement)), all moneys payable by you to the Chargor in respect of the Assigned Agreements shall be paid to the account notified to you by the Chargor.
- 4. Despite the assignment referred to above or the making of any payment by you to the Security Agent under or in connection with it:
  - (a) the Chargor shall remain liable to perform all its obligations under each Assigned Agreement; and
  - (b) the Security Agent and any Delegate shall not at any time be under any obligation or liability to you under or in respect of any Assigned Agreement.
- 5. You are authorised and instructed, without requiring further approval, to provide the Security Agent with such information relating to the Assigned Agreements as it may from time to time request and to send to the Security Agent and us copies of all notices issued by you.
- 6. This authority and instruction is irrevocable without the prior written consent of the Security Agent.
- 7. This notice of assignment and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law. The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with this notice of assignment (including a dispute relating to the existence, validity or termination of this notice of assignment or any non-contractual obligation arising out of or in connection with this notice of assignment).
- 8. Please acknowledge receipt of this notice of assignment and confirm that:
  - (a) you will pay all moneys in respect of each Assigned Agreement as directed by or pursuant to this notice of assignment;

- (b) you have not received any other notice of any assignment of an Assigned Agreement (except in respect of notices delivered under the Existing Debentures);
- (c) you will not claim or exercise any set-off or counterclaim in respect of any Assigned Agreement; and
- (d) you will comply with the other provisions of this notice of assignment,

by signing the acknowledgement on the attached copy of this notice of assignment and returning that copy to the Security Agent at  $[\bullet]$ , marked for the attention of  $[\bullet]$ .

[Security Agent]	[Chargor]						
Ву:	ву:						
[On duplicate]							
We acknowledge receipt of the notice of assignment of which this is a copy and confirm each of the matters referred to in paragraphs (a) – (d) of paragraph 8 of the notice of assignment.							
[Party to the Agreement]							
By:							
Dated:							

## **SCHEDULE 10**

## **CLIENT MONEY ACCOUNTS**

Account Name	Sort Code	Account Number
Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED
Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED
Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED
Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED
Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED
Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	REDACTED	REDACTED
	Busy Bees Nurseries Limited  Busy Bees Nurseries Limited  Busy Bees Nurseries Limited  Busy Bees Nurseries Limited  Busy Bees Nurseries Limited	Busy Bees Nurseries Limited  Busy Bees Nurseries Limited  REDACTED  REDACTED  Busy Bees Nurseries Limited  REDACTED  Busy Bees Nurseries Limited  REDACTED  REDACTED  REDACTED

#### SCHEDULE 11

#### FORM OF SECURITY ACCESSION DEED

#### THIS SECURITY ACCESSION DEED is dated [●] and made between:

- (1) [●] (the "Parent");
- (2) [●], a company incorporated in [●] with registered number [●] (the "Additional Chargor");
- (3) [ ] as security agent for the Secured Parties (the "Security Agent").

#### Background

- (A) This Security Accession Deed is supplemental to a security agreement dated [•] 2018 between, amongst others, the Original Chargors and the Security Agent, as previously supplemented by earlier Security Accession Deeds (if any) and as scheduled in Schedule [12] (the "Security Agreement"). This Security Accession Deed shall take effect as a Security Accession Deed for the purpose of the Security Agreement.
- (B) The board of directors of the Additional Chargor is satisfied that entering into this Security Accession Deed would be most likely to promote the success of the Additional Chargor for the benefit of its members as a whole and to the further benefit and advantage of the Additional Chargor.
- (C) The Security Agent and the Additional Chargor intend this document to take effect as a deed (even though the Security Agent only executes it under hand).
- (D) The Security Agent holds the benefit of this Security Accession Deed for the Secured Parties on the terms of the Finance Documents.

#### 1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

#### 1.1 Definitions

Terms defined in the Security Agreement have the same meaning in this Security Accession Deed unless given a different meaning in this Security Accession Deed.

#### 1.2 Construction

- (a) The provisions in clauses 1.2 (Incorporation of defined terms) to 1.6 (Intercreditor Agreement) of the Security Agreement apply to this Security Accession Deed, except that references to the Security Agreement shall be construed as references to this Security Accession Deed.
- (b) The Security Agreement shall remain in full force and effect as supplemented by this Security Accession Deed.
- (c) The Security Agreement and this Security Accession Deed shall be read together as one instrument on the basis that references in the Security Agreement to "this Deed" will be deemed to be references to the Security Agreement as supplemented by this Security Accession Deed.

#### 2. ACCESSION OF ADDITIONAL CHARGOR

#### 2.1 Accession

The Additional Chargor agrees to become an Additional Chargor and to be bound by the terms of the Security Agreement as an Additional Chargor pursuant to clause 28 (Additional Chargors) of the Security Agreement.

#### 2.2 Creation of Security Interests

- (a) Subject to clause 2.7 (Excluded assets) of the Security Agreement, the Additional Chargor, with full title guarantee and as security for the payment of all Secured Obligations, charges in favour of the Security Agent:
  - (i) by way of first legal mortgage, all Material Real Property in England and Wales (including that described in Schedule [1] (Material Real Property)) owned by it on the date of this Security Accession Deed;
  - (ii) by way of first fixed equitable charge, all other Real Property owned by it on the date of this Security Accession Deed, all Real Property acquired by it after the date of this Security Accession Deed and, to the extent not validly and effectively mortgaged under sub-paragraph (i) above, all Real Property in England and Wales owned by it on the date of this Security Accession Deed;
  - (iii) by way of first fixed charge, all its Charged Accounts (including those described in Schedule [2] (Charged Accounts));
  - (iv) by way of first fixed charge, all its Receivables;
  - (v) by way of first equitable mortgage, all its Shares;
  - (vi) by way of first fixed charge, all its Investments and CREST Rights;
  - (vii) by way of first fixed charge, all its right, title and interest from time to time in and to its uncalled capital and goodwill;
  - (viii) by way of first fixed charge, all its Intellectual Property (including that described in Schedule [4] (Material Intellectual Property));
  - (ix) by way of first fixed charge, all its Plant and Machinery (except that validly and effectively mortgaged or charged under sub-paragraph (i) or sub-paragraph (ii) above);
  - (x) by way of first fixed charge, all its Insurances, to the extent not validly and effectively assigned under paragraph (c) below;
  - (xi) by way of first fixed charge, all its Assigned Agreements, to the extent not validly and effectively assigned under paragraph (d) below; and
  - (xii) by way of first floating charge, all its undertaking and all its assets, both present and future (including assets expressed to be mortgaged, charged or assigned under this Clause 2.2).
- (b) Subject to clause 2.7 (*Excluded assets*) of the Security Agreement, the Additional Chargor, with full title guarantee and as security for the payment of all Secured Obligations, assigns to the Security Agent by way of security all its Insurances.

(c) Subject to clause 2.7 (Excluded assets) of the Security Agreement, the Additional Chargor, with full title guarantee and as security for the payment of all Secured Obligations, assigns to the Security Agent by way of security all its Assigned Agreements.

#### 2.3 Ranking

The floating charge created by the Additional Chargor under Clause 2.2 (Creation of Security Interests) ranks:

- (a) behind all the mortgages, fixed charges and assignments created by that Additional Chargor; but
- (b) in priority to any other Security over the Security Assets of that Additional Chargor except for Security ranking in priority in accordance with paragraph (g) of Schedule 2 (Rights of Receivers) of the Security Agreement.

#### 3. UNDERTAKINGS

#### 3.1 Undertaking to pay

Subject to any limits on its liability specifically recorded in the Finance Documents, the Additional Chargor shall pay each of the Secured Obligations when due in accordance with its terms

#### 3.2 Negative pledge

No Additional Chargor shall create or permit to subsist any Security or Quasi Security over any Security Asset, except as permitted by the Facilities Agreement or with the prior written consent of the Security Agent (acting in accordance with the Intercreditor Agreement).

#### 3.3 Disposals

No Additional Chargor shall enter into a single transaction or a series of transactions (whether related or not and whether voluntary or involuntary) to sell, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of any Security Asset, except as permitted by the Facilities Agreement.

#### 4. REPRESENTATIONS

- (a) Each Additional Chargor represents and warrants to the Security Agent that:
  - (i) the assets listed in Schedules 1 (Material Real Property) to 4 (Material Intellectual Property) in respect of that Additional Chargor are all the relevant material assets in which it has an interest; and
  - (ii) it has no Material Real Property situated in England and Wales other than that specified in Schedule 4 (Material Real Property).

## 5. DESIGNATION

In accordance with the Security Agreement, each of the Security Agent and the Parent designate this Security Accession Deed as a Debt Document.

#### 6. GOVERNING LAW

This Security Accession Deed and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law.

This Security Accession Security Accession Deed.	Deed	has	been	delivered	on	tbe	date	stated	at	the	beginning	of this

## **SCHEDULE 2**

## **Charged Accounts**

Bank	Sort Code	Account No.	Name of Account

### **SCHEDULE 4**

## Material Intellectual Property

#### **Patents**

TITLE	APPLICATION NO.	REGISTRATION NO.	JURISDICTION	STATUS

## Registered Designs

TITLE	APPLICATION NO.	REGISTRATION NO.	JURISDICTION	STATUS

## Registered Trade Marks

MARK	APPLICATION NO.	REGISTRATION NO.	CLASS(ES)	JURISDICTION	STATUS

## Licences and Sub-licences of Intellectual Property

LICENSOR	LICENSEE	DATE	SUBJECT MATTER

## **Other Intellectual Property**

(i.e. copyright, unregistered trade mark and design rights)

## Signatories to Security Accession Deed

[SIGNED as a DEED by [ADDITIONAL CHARGOR] acting by [name of director] a Director and [name of Director or Secretary] [a Director] [the Secretary]]	[Signature of Director]
	[Signature of Director or Secretary]
[SIGNED as a DEED by [THE PARENT] acting by [name of director] a Director and [name of Director or Secretary] [a Director] [the Secretary]]	[Signature of Director]
	[Signature of Director or Secretary]
[SIGNED by [name of authorised signatory] for and	[Signature of authorised signatory]
on behalf of [NAME OF SECURITY AGENT]	

#### SIGNATURE PAGES

The Chargors **EXECUTED AS A DEED** REDACTED Eagle Midco Limited By: Signature of Director 文 Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Address of witness NORSILAH BAHTIAR **Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd** 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501 7500ccupation of witness Corporate Secretary Address: Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Irons Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP Fax: +44 (0) 1543 678601 **EXECUTED AS A DEED** By: **Eagle Bidco Limited** REDACTED Signature of Director X Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of REDACTED Signature of witness Name of witness NORSILAH BAHTIAR Address of witness Busy Bees Singapore Pte Lid 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501 7500cEapation of Mitness Corporate Secretary Address: Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood. Staffordshire, WS7 9QP

Fax:

EXECUTED AS A DEED REDACTED

By: Eagle Target Limited X

Signature of Director

Name of Director Simon Irons

in the presence of REDACTED

Signature of witness

Name of witness

Busy Bees Singapore Pte Lid NORSILAH BAHTIAR

100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523

Tel: 6501 7500 Cerepration 754 witness Corporate Secretary

Address: Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon

Irons

Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Staffordshire, WS7 9QP

Fax: +44 (0) 1543 678601

EXECUTED AS A DEED REDACTED

By: Busy Bees Holdings Limited X

Signature of Director

Name of Director Simon Irons

in the presence of REDACTED

Signature of witness

Name of witness NORSILAH BAHTIAR

Busy Bees Singapore Pie Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523

Tel: 6501 7500 Earpafiel of Witness Corporate Secretary

Address: Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon

Trons

Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Staffordshire, WS7 9QP

Fax: +44 (0) 1543 678601

**EXECUTED AS A DEED** 

REDACTED **Busy Bees Nurseries Limited** By:

Signature of Director

Simon Irons Name of Director

in the presence of REDACTED

Signature of witness

Name of witness

NORSILAH BAHTIAR Address of witness

Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523

Tel: 6501 7500 Eax 6501 7547 Corporate Secretary

Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address:

Irons

Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Staffordshire, WS7 9QP

+44 (0) 1543 678601 Fax:

**EXECUTED AS A DEED** 

Busy Bees Day Nurseries (Trading) Limited By:

> **REDACTED** Signature of Director

Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of

Signature of witness

REDACTED Name of witness

Busy Bees SMylipsing Princing NORSILAH BAHTIAR

100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523

Tel: 6501 7508 Fax: 6501 754 Witness Corporate Secretary

Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address:

Irons Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Staffordshire, WS7 9QP

Fax: +44 (0) 1543 678601 **EXECUTED AS A DEED Busy Bees Day Nurseries Limited** By: **REDACTED** Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons X in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Address of witness Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road NORSILAH BAHTIAR Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501 7500c repation of syitness Corporate Secretary Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address: Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP +44 (0) 1543 678601 Fax: **EXECUTED AS A DEED** Learning Just Limited By: REDACTED Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness **REDACTED** Name of witness Busy Bees Sings of white Etd NORSILAH BAHTIAR 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501 7600 Earti 650 175 Miness Corporate Secretary Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address: Irons

Fax:

Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

**EXECUTED AS A DEED** Just Learning Malling Limited By: **REDACTED** Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Address of witness **Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd** 100G Pasir Panjang Road NORSILAH BAHTIAR Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501 7506 CHRATION OF WHITNESS Corporate Secretary Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address: Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP +44 (0) 1543 678601 Fax: EXECUTED AS A DEED **REDACTED** Just Learning Ltd. By: Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness **REDACTED** Name of witness Address of witness Busy Boes Singapore Pte Ltd NUKSILAH BAHTIAR 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501 Toccupations of womes Corporate Secretary Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address:

Fax:

Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

**EXECUTED AS A DEED** REDACTED Nu Nu Limited By: Signature of Director X Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Address of witness Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd NORSILAH BAHTIAR 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501 7500 Fax: 6501 7549s Corporate Secretary Address: Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP Fax: +44 (0) 1543 678601 **EXECUTED AS A DEED** Early Years Child Care Limited By: Signature of Director REDACTED Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Busy Been didress of weither Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road NORSILAH BAHTIAR Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501 7500 Fax: 6501 7547 Occupation of witness Corporate Secretary Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address: Irons Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Fax:

Staffordshire, WS7 9QP

**EXECUTED AS A DEED Eagle Target 2 Limited** By: REDACTED Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Address of witness **Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd** 100G Pasir Panjang Road NORSILAH BAHTIAR Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523
Tel: 650 750 parion 650 viriges Corporate Secretary Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address: Irons Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP +44 (0) 1543 678601 Fax: **EXECUTED AS A DEED** Bv: Paintkey Limited **REDACTED** Signature of Director X Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of REDACTED Signature of witness Name of witness Busy Beesdang apare Fie Ltd NORSYLAH BAHTIAR 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 650 7500 Faxin 650 Winess Corporate Secretary Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address: Irons Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Fax:

EXECUTED AS A DEED

By:

Kinder Nurseries Ltd

REDACTED

Signature of Director

Name of Director

X Simon Irons

in the presence of

Signature of witness

Name of witness

REDACTED

Address of witness Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd

100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18

NORSILAH BAHTIAR

Singapore 118523

Tel: 6501 7500 upario 660 Withress Corporate Secretary

Address:

Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Irons Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Staffordshire, WS7 9QP

Fax:

+44 (0) 1543 678601

**EXECUTED AS A DEED** 

By:

Rosevale Holdings Limited

REDACTED

Signature of Director

Name of Director Simon Irons

in the presence of

Signature of witness

Name of witness

REDACTED

Busy Bees Astong sport will test.td

100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18

NORSILAH BAHTIAR

Singapore 118523

Tel: 6501 7500 Fax: 6501 7547 Occupation of witness

Corporate Secretary

Address:

Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon

Irons

Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Staffordshire, WS7 9QP

Fax:

**EXECUTED AS A DEED** By: Caring Daycare Limited REDACTED Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Address of witness Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road NORSILAH BAHTIAR Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523
Tel: 6501 Occupation of witness Corporate Secretary Address: Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP Fax: +44 (0) 1543 678601 **EXECUTED AS A DEED** By: Major Minors Limited REDACTED Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Busy Bees Singapore Fie Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road NORSILAH BAHTIAR Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501 7500cclipat 6510 by 647ness Corporate Secretary Address: Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Irons

Fax:

Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Staffordshire, WS7 9QP

EXECUTED AS A DEED						
By:	Busy Bees Education &	Busy Bees Education & Training Limited				
	Signature of Director	REDACTED				
	Name of Director Simon	Irons				
in the presence of						
	Signature of witness					
	Name of witness	REDACTED				
	Address of witness Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 650 Proception of ovitages	NORSILAH BAHTIAR Corporate Secretary				
Address:	Jean-Charles Douin / Abh Irons	nijeet Gupta/ Simon				
	Busy Bees, Shaftsbury De Staffordshire, WS7 9QP	rive, Burntwood,				
Fax:	+44 (0) 1543 678601					
EXECUTED AS A DEED						
Ву:	Positive Steps Childrens Limited	Day Nursery				
	Signature of Director	REDACTED				
	Name of Director Simon Irons					
in the presence of	Silion	110119				
	Signature of witness					
	Name of witness	REDACTED				
	Busy Be <b>Address abvitors e</b> Ltd 1006 Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501,7500 Fax: 6501,7547 Occupation of witness	NORSTEAH BAHIIAR				
Address:	Jean-Charles Douin / Abh Irons	nijeet Gupta/ Simon				
	Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Di Staffordshire, WS7 9QP	rive, Burntwood,				

Fax:

EXECUTED AS A DEED			
By:	Kids First Day Nurserie	s Limited REDACTED	
	Signature of Director	ICE TEL	
	Name of Director Simon	Ironsy	
in the presence of		,	
	Signature of witness	REDACTED	
	Name of witness		
	Address of witness Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 650 <b>2000parian: e59119655</b>	NORSILAH BAHTIAR	
Address:	Jean-Charles Douin / Abh Irons	ijeet Gupta/ Simon	
	Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP		
Fax:	+44 (0) 1543 678601		
EXECUTED AS A DEED			
By:	Busy Bees Nurseries (Scotland) Limited		
	Signature of Director	REDACTED	
	Name of Director Simon Irons		
in the presence of		,	
	Signature of witness		
	Name of witness	REDACTED	
	Susy Bees Singapore Pie Ltd 1000 Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523	NORSTEAH BAHTIAR	
	Tel: 650 DESAIDATION STANTINESS	Corporate Secretary	
Address:	Simon Irons / Matthew Muller		
	1 Lochside Place,		
	Edinburgh,		

Fax:

EH12 9DF

EXECUTED AS A DEED **Cashew Holdings Limited** By: REDACTED Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Address of witness Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501 PON PRIOR NI WILLESS NORSILAH BAHTIAR Corporate Secretary Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijcet Gupta/ Simon Address: Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP +44 (0) 1543 678601 Fax: **EXECUTED AS A DEED** CR Childcare Limited By: REDACTED Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness ousy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road NORSILAH BAHTIAR Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tal. 650 WEUpainen 660 with tes Corporate Secretary Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address: Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Fax:

**EXECUTED AS A DEED** Eagle Target 3 Limited REDACTED By: Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Address of witness Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 NORSILAH BAHTIAR Singapore 118523 Corporate Secretary Tel: 6501 Acoupation of witness Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address: Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP +44 (0) 1543 678601 Fax: **EXECUTED AS A DEED** By: **Eagle Target 4 Limited REDACTED** Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of REDACTED Signature of witness Name of witness Address of witness Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road NORSILAH BAHTIAR Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Corporate Secretary Tel: 6501 Psoupation of witness

> Staffordshire, WS7 9QP +44 (0) 1543 678601

Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon

Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Address:

Fax:

### **EXECUTED AS A DEED** Forest Nursery Investments Limited By: REDACTED Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons( in the presence of Signature of witness Name of witness REDACTED Address of witness Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 NORSILAH BAHTIAR Singapore 118523 of witness rel: 6501 7500 Fax: 5501 7547 Corporate Secretary Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address: Irons Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP +44 (0) 1543 678601 Fax: EXECUTED AS A DEED Happy Child Limited By: REDACTED Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness **REDACTED** Name of witness Busy Bees dings for the Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road NORWILAH BAHTIAR Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501 Jean parton of Wintess Corporate Secretary Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address: Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Fax:

EXECUTED AS A DEED	
By:	Happy Child (Mottingham) Limited
	Signature of Director REDACTED
	Name of Director Simon Irons
in the presence of	
	Signature of witness
	Name of witness REDACTED
	Address of witness
Address:	Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd  100G Pasir Panjang Road Interiocal Centre, #05-18 NORSILAH BAHTIAR Sir Georgatinas witness Corporate Secretary Tel: 6501 7500 Fax: 6501 7547 Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Irons
	Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP
Fax:	+44 (0) 1543 678601
EXECUTED AS A DEED	
By:	HCL Acquisitions Limited REDACTED
	Signature of Director
	Name of Director Simon Irons
in the presence of	
	Signature of witness REDACTED
	Name of witness
	Busy Bees Strings of Pier Ltd  100G Pasir Panjang Road NORSILAH BAHTIAR Interlocal Centre, #05-18  Singapore 118523  Tel: 6501 7500 Fax: 6501 7547 Occupation of witness  Corporate Secretary
Address:	Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Irons
	Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP

Fax:

**EXECUTED AS A DEED** REDACTED By: **HCL Finance Limited** Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Busy Bees Singapore Pie Liu 100G Pasir Panjang Road NORSILAH BAHTIAR Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501 7500 Eexplifish of Witness Corporate Secretary Address: Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Irons Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP +44 (0) 1543 678601 Fax: **EXECUTED AS A DEED** By: Kindercare (Harrogate) Limited REDACTED Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Busy Boes Singapore Pte Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road NORSILAH BAHTIAR interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Corporate Secretary Tel: 6501 7000 Light 64 OF Witness Address: Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon

Staffordshire, WS7 9QP

Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Fax:

EXECUTED AS A DEED		
By:	Oak Tree Nursery Investments Limited	
	Signature of Director REDACTED	
	Name of Director Simon Irons	
in the presence of		
	Signature of witness REDACTED	
	Name of witness	
	Address of witness Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd  100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501 7006uffations of witness  Corporate Secretary	
Address:	Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Irons	
	Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP	
Fax:	+44 (0) 1543 678601	
EXECUTED AS A DEED By:	Playtime Nursery Limited REDACTED	
•	Signature of Director $\chi$	
	Name of Director Simon Irons	
in the presence of		
	Signature of witness REDACTED	
	Name of witness	
	Address of witness Busy Bees Singapore Pie Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #65-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501 750Occapsation of Witness  Corporate Secretary	
Address:	Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Irons	
	Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP	

Fax:

**EXECUTED AS A DEED** Queen of Hearts Nursery School Limited By: **REDACTED** Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Address of witness
Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road NORSILAH BAHTIAR Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Corporate Secretary Tel: 6501 7500cupation of wieness Address: Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP +44 (0) 1543 678601 Fax: **EXECUTED AS A DEED** By: The Green Umbrella Day Nursery Limited REDACTED Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Address of witness Sungapore Pte Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road NORSILAH BAHTIAR Interlocal Centra, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Corporate Secretary

Tel: 6501 75 Occupation of Antness

Address:

Jean-Charles Douin / A

Fax:

Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon

Irons

Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Staffordshire, WS7 9QP

**EXECUTED AS A DEED REDACTED Toybox Day Nurseries Limited** By: Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Address of witness Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road NORSILAH BAHTIAR Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Corporate Secretary Tel: 6501 7500cquarten of aximess Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address: Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP +44 (0) 1543 678601 Fax: **EXECUTED AS A DEED REDACTED Treetops Belper Limited** By: Signature of Director X Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of REDACTED Signature of witness Name of witness Gusy Boes Address of witness Ltd NORSILAH BAHTIAR 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18

Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon

Corporate Secretary

Irons

Address:

Fax:

Singapore 118523 fel: 6501 7500 Feat of the withess

Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Staffordshire, WS7 9QP

**EXECUTED AS A DEED** REDACTED **Trectops Cheam Limited** By: Signature of Director X Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness **REDACTED** Name of witness Address of witness Susy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road NORSILAH BAHTIAR Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Corporate Secretary Tel: 6501 7500 COURSE 1000 to feet uness Address: Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP +44 (0) 1543 678601 Fax: EXECUTED AS A DEED **REDACTED Treetops Clipstone Limited** By: Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of REDACTED Signature of witness Name of witness Address of witness Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd NORSILAH BAHTIAR 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501 Classipation of withess Corporate Secretary Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address: Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Fax:

**EXECUTED AS A DEED REDACTED** Treetops Epsom Limited By: Signature of Director X Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Address of witness Busy Bees Singapore Ple Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 NORSILAH BAHTIAR Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501 Corporate Secretary Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address: Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP +44 (0) 1543 678601 Fax: **EXECUTED AS A DEED** By: Treetops Gloucestershire Limited REDACTED Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of **REDACTED** Signature of witness Name of witness Address of witness Busy Bees Singapore Pte LtdNORSTEAH BAHTIAR 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 1185237 witness Tel: 6501 7500 Fax: 6501 7547 Corporate Secretary Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address: Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Fax:

**EXECUTED AS A DEED Treetops Nurseries Limited** By: **REDACTED** Signature of Director Y Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Busy Bees Singapore Pte Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road NORSILAH BAHTIAR Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501 7000 uparidifof wittess Corporate Secretary Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address: Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP +44 (0) 1543 678601 Fax: **EXECUTED AS A DEED** Treetops Nurseries (London) Limited By: REDACTED Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of REDACTED Signature of witness Name of witness Address of witness Busy Boes Singapore Pte Ltd NORSTTAH BAHTIAR 100G Pasir Panjang Road Intodocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 118523 Corporate Secretary Tel: 6501 Occupation of witness Address: Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Fax:

**EXECUTED AS A DEED** By: Eagle Target 5 Limited REDACTED Signature of Director × Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Busy Reas Addigs Afreithess to 100G Pasir Panjang Road NORSTLAH BAHTIAR Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 116523 Tel: 6501 7500 Fax: 6501 7547 Occupation of witness Corporate Secretary Address: Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Irons Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP Fax: +44 (0) 1543 678601 **EXECUTED AS A DEED** REDACTED By: **Eagle Leasing Limited** Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of Signature of witness REDACTED Name of witness Busy Boos Offices of witherston QRSLLAR BAHTIAR Interlocal Centre, #05-18 Singapore 116523 Tel: 6501 7500 Fax: 6501 7547 Occupation of witness Corporate Secretary Address: Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Irons Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood,

Fax:

Staffordshire, WS7 9QP

**EXECUTED AS A DEED** REDACTED Eagle Target 6 Limited By: Signature of Director Name of Director Simon Irons in the presence of **REDACTED** Signature of witness Name of witness Busy Boes Singapore Pite Ltd 100G Pasir Panjang Road Interlocal Centre, #05-18 NORS TLAH BAHTIAR Singapore 118523 Tel: 6501 7500 Fax: 6501 7547 Corporate Secretary Occupation of witness Jean-Charles Douin / Abhijeet Gupta/ Simon Address: Busy Bees, Shaftsbury Drive, Burntwood, Staffordshire, WS7 9QP

Fax:

# **REDACTED**

## THE SECURITY AGENT

SUMITOMO MITSUI BANKING CORPORATION EUROPE LIMITED REDACTED By:

V Joyce Horne Assistant Vice President

Yuichiro Iwamoto Assistant Vice President

Address:

99 Queen Victoria Street, London, EC4V 4EH, United Kingdom

Fax No.:

+44 20 7786 1000

Attention:

Joyce Home / Veronica Irlam